
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MAY 01, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of April 17, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Hearing on the proposed condemnation of property located at 1312 Clay Street. 
 
a) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
b) Oral comments. 
 
c) Resolution declaring the property located at 1312 Clay Street to be a nuisance due to being 
structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human life and health. 

d) Resolution ordering abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or demolition of the property 
located at 1312 Clay Street and requiring the owner of said property to abate said nuisance or 
submit a viable plan by May 15, 2023.  

3. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the North 
Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase 1A. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 04/21/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase 1A. 

Old Business 

1



Page 2 of 4 

4. Pass Ordinance #3026, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
conditional use for adaptive reuse of defunct institutional buildings, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

5. Pass Ordinance #3027, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to signage 
for Civic/Institutional Uses in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), upon its second 
consideration. 

6. Pass Ordinance #3028, amending the Zoning Map by removing approximately 3 acres of property 
located west of the Hudson Road & Ashworth Drive intersection, f/n/a 4919 Hudson Road from A-1, 
Agricultural District and placing the same in the R-1, Residence District, upon its second 
consideration. 

7. Pass Ordinance #3029, amending the Zoning Map by removing approximately 14.43 acres of 
property located north of Black Hawk Park Addition and west of Cypress Avenue from A-1, 
Agricultural District and placing the same in the R-2, Residence District, upon its second 
consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

8. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of April 17, 2023 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Review of Council Salary. 
b) Downtown Public Restroom Study. 
c) Iowa Workforce Housing Tax Credit. 

9. Approve a proclamation recognizing June 2023 as Pride Month. 

10. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Jeff Engel, Cedar Falls Utilities Board of Trustees, term ending 08/31/2029. 

11. Approve the application of Beth Schildroth, d/b/a Big Acai, for a Mobile Merchant license. 

12. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of March 2023. 

13. Approve the following applications for cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permits:  
a) Buzz Smoke & Vapor, 2125 College Street Suite A. 
b) Cloud 9 Glass & Novelty, 2125 College Street Suite C. 
c) Five Corners Liquor and Wine, 809 East 18th Street. 
d) Hansen's Dairy, 123 East 18th Street. 
e) Hill Street News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street. 
f) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street. 
g) Prime Mart 4, 2323 Main Street. 

14. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) CVS/Pharmacy, 2302 West 1st Street, Class E retail alcohol – renewal. 
b) Cedar Basin Music Festival, Sturgis Park, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 5-day 
permit. 
c) Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street including adjacent sidewalks, 
Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – seven 5-day permits (June 2-6, June 9-13, July 6-
10, July 13-17, July 27-31, August 10-14, and August 17-21). 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

15. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

2



Page 3 of 4 

16. Resolution approving and accepting the permanent transfer of $2,543,741.00 from the Municipal 
Electric Utility to the General Fund of the City of Cedar Falls, and $604,416.00 from the Municipal 
Gas Utility to the General Fund of the City of Cedar Falls. 

17. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 210 West 22nd Street. 

18. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 804-806 Seerley Boulevard. 

19. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 818 Seerley Boulevard. 

20. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 1022 West 22nd Street. 

21. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 1122 West 22nd Street. 

22. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to remove snow and ice from the 
sidewalks abutting the property located at 2413 Olive Street. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with Myers Cox relative to 
providing concession products and supplies for the Falls Aquatic Center. 

24. Resolution designating the dates and locations for the annual Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar 
Basin Music Festival. 

25. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract for towing, wrecker and storage 
services with Rasmusson Towing. 

26. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment to the Service/Product 
Agreement with Iowa Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for administration of a 
United States Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration (EDA) grant relative 
to the Cedar River Recreational Improvements Project. 

27. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Cash Escrow Agreement with The Rotary Club 
of Cedar Falls relative to construction of the Rotary Plaza to be located at 205-221 West 1st Street. 

28. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 5 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Riverwise Engineering, LLC for construction phase services 
relative to the Cedar River Recreational Improvements Project. 

29. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Iowa Flat Works, Inc. 
for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5. 

30. Resolution approving the Final Statement of Expenditures for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
- Zone 5. 

31. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Storm Water Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement with McWing, LLC relative to a post-construction stormwater management plan for 3015-
3045 Capital Way. 

32. Receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Dave Schmitt Construction Co. 
Inc., in the amount of $1,249,087.31, being the lowest bid received for the Ashworth Drive Extension 
Project. 

33. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase Agreement, and approving 
and accepting a Sanitary Sewer Easement and Temporary Construction Easement, in conjunction 
with the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project. 

3



Page 4 of 4 

34. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with AECOM 
Technical Services, Inc. for design services relative to the Greenwood Cemetery Slope Stabilization 
Project. 

35. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of four Owner Purchase Agreements, and approving 
and accepting four Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the 2023 Alley 
Reconstruction Project. 

36. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting May 15, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 Alley Reconstruction 
Project. 

37. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting May 15, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 Seal Coat Project.  

38. Resolution setting May 15, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to the City’s 
FY2023 Budget. 

39. Resolution setting May 15, 2023 as the date of public hearing on a proposal to vacate a portion of 
Hudson Road right-of-way. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

40. Allow Bills and Claims for May 1, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

41. Refer to the Finance & Business Operations Committee retiring or expiring tax increment financing 
(TIF) districts and process of releasing funds. 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, APRIL 17, 2023 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:20 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield (arrived at 7:56 P.M.), Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. 
Mayor Green led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54240 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of April 3, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
54241 - Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, commented and expressed appreciation to 

City Council and city staff for the public restroom discussion at the Committee 
meeting. 

 
  Brian Wingert, 2110 Flynn Drive, commented on a new restaurant being planned 

downtown and suggested a potential private/public partnership for restrooms as 
part of the project. Mr. Wingert also spoke about benefits of the workforce 
housing tax credits. 

 
  Kyle Nelson, 2714 Rownd Street, requested a code amendment to allow 

accessory dwelling units in other areas of the city besides downtown. 
   
54242 -     Community Development Director Sheetz provided an update on the job fair that 

was held on April 15th and noted that job openings are available on the City’s 
web site. 

 
53243 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on a complaint 

issued to Baba Fareed LLC, d/b/a Great Wall China, 2125 College Street, Suite 
D, for a first tobacco violation. Assistant City Attorney Sam Anderson provided 
background on the tobacco complaint. Following comments on behalf of Great 
Wall China by owner Ghulam Qureshi, the Mayor declared the hearing closed 
and passed to the next order of business. 

 It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn to approve and authorize 
execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a First Tobacco Violation 
regarding Great Wall China, 2125 College Street, Suite D. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None. Motion carried. 

53244 - Mayor announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on a complaint 
issued to Cedar Sky, Inc., d/b/a Bani's, 2128 College Street, for a third tobacco 
violation. Assistant City Attorney Sam Anderson commented on behalf of the City 
and requested that the public hearing be continued for one month. The request to 
postpone the hearing was unanimously approved. 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

 Following comments by Mayor Green, there was consensus by Council to 
postpone agenda items #4 and #5 until Councilmember Ganfield’s return. 

54245 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 7, 
2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the on the proposed 
plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Ashworth Drive 
Roadway Extension Project. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54246 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

project. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on file, 
the Mayor then called for oral comments. City Engineer Wicke provided a 
summary of the project. There being no one else present wishing to speak about 
the project, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order 
of business. 

 
54247- It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #23,128, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension Project, be adopted. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Schultz and Sires, and 
responses by City Engineer Wicke, City Administrator Gaines and Public Works 
Director Schrage, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Dunn.  Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,128 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54248 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 7, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments 
to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to signage for 
Civic/Institutional Uses in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). It was then 
moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice 
of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54249 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard provided a summary of the proposed 
amendments. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to 
the next order of business. 

 
54250 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3027, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to signage for 
Civic/Institutional Uses in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be passed 
upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 
                 Councilmember Ganfield present at 7:56 P.M. Council consensus was to 

continue with the remaining public hearings before returning to items #4 and #5. 
 
54251 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 7, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from A-1, Agricultural District to R-1, Residence District approximately 3 acres of 
property located west of the Hudson Road & Ashworth Drive intersection, f/n/a 
4919 Hudson Road. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that 
the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54252 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III 
Weintraut provided a summary of the proposed rezoning. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the proposed rezoning, the Mayor declared 
the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

                  
54253 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3028, 

amending the Zoning Map by removing approximately 3 acres of property located 
west of the Hudson Road & Ashworth Drive intersection, f/n/a 4919 Hudson 
Road from A-1, Agricultural District and placing the same in the R-1, Residence 
District, be passed upon its first consideration. Following due consideration by 
the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54254 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 7, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from A-1, Agricultural District to R-2, Residence District approximately 14.43 
acres of property located north of Black Hawk Park Addition and west of Cypress 
Avenue. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
54255 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III 
Pezley provided a summary of the proposed rezoning. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed rezoning, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

                  
54256 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Schultz that Ordinance #3029, 

amending the Zoning Map by removing approximately 14.43 acres of property 
located north of Black Hawk Park Addition and west of Cypress Avenue from A-
1, Agricultural District and placing the same in the R-2, Residence District, be 
passed upon its first consideration. Following a question by Councilmember 
Ganfield, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54257 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 7, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing to consider entering into a 
proposed Purchase, Sale and Development Agreement and Minimum 
Assessment Agreement; and to consider conveyance of city-owned real estate to 
CF Storage, LLC. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried 6-1, with Sires abstaining. 

 
54258 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed conveyance. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a summary of the conveyance. 
There being no one else present wishing to speak about the conveyance, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54259- It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Schultz that Resolution #23,127, 

approving and authorizing execution of a Purchase, Sale, and Development 
Agreement and Minimum Assessment Agreement, approving and authorizing 
execution of a Deed Without Warranty conveying certain city-owned real estate 
to CF Storage, LLC, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers 
deBuhr and Ganfield, comments by Mayor Green, and responses by Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham and Finance & Business Operations Director 
Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, 
the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Dunn.  Nay: None. Abstain: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #23,127 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54260 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of April 5, 

2023, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed FY2024 
Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Ganfield that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54261 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed budget. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & Business Operations 
Director Rodenbeck provided a summary of the budget process. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the budget, the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54262- It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,126, 

approving and adopting the FY2024 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls, be 
adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Harding and 
Kruse, and responses by Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck, it 
was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires to amend the budget to use 
$105,000 of excess hotel/motel revenue in FY23 to lower the tax rate of FY24 to 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

$11.40. Director Rodenbeck commented. Following questions and comments by 
Councilmembers Kruse, Dunn, Harding and Sires, and Mayor Green, and 
responses by Rodenbeck, it was moved by Sires to amend the motion to move 
excess savings to general funds for property tax relief. Director Rodenbeck and 
Mayor Green commented. The motion by Sires failed for lack of a second. 
Following a question by Ganfield and responses by Rodenbeck and City 
Administrator Gaines, it was moved by Kruse to call the question on the original 
amendment. Following comments by Rodenbeck and Councilmembers Kruse, 
deBuhr and Schultz, the motion to amend carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. 
Following additional questions by Councilmembers Kruse, Harding and Ganfield, 
and responses by Rodenbeck, the Mayor put the question on the original motion 
as amended and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Dunn.  Nay: Sires. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,126 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54263 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3025, 

amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
procedures for Planning & Zoning Commission review and City Council approval 
of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be passed upon its 
third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, deBuhr, Ganfield, Sires. Nay: 
Schultz, Harding, Dunn. Motion failed due to 5 aye votes being required. 

 
54264 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3026, amending 

Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to conditional use for 
adaptive reuse of defunct institutional buildings, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. 
Nay: Schultz. Motion carried. 

 
54265 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of April 3, 2023 
relative to the following items: 
a) "Low Mow May" Presentation. 
b) FY2024 Budget Presentation. 

 Approve a proclamation recognizing May 2023 as National Bike Month, May 3, 
2023 as Bike to School Day, May 15-21, 2023 as Bike to Work Week, and May 
17, 2023 as National Ride in Silence Day. 

 Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) MaryJane McCollum, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 
05/01/2027. 
b) Bruce Wingert, Board of Rental Housing Appeals, term ending 05/01/2027. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with BSE, 
Inc., d/b/a Prime Mart, 2323 Main Street, for a first tobacco violation. 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Berk's Main Street Pub, 207 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Jorgensen Plaza (Table 1912, Diamond Event Center and Gilmore’s Pub), 
5307 Caraway Lane, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – renewal. 
c) Suds, 2223 ½ College Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – 
renewal. 
d) The Horny Toad American Bar & Grille, 204 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol 
– renewal. 
e) ZSAVOOZ, 206 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service 
– renewal. 
f) Walgreens, 2509 Whitetail Drive, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
g) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class F retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

54266 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #23,129, rescheduling the regularly scheduled City Council meeting 
of July 3, 2023 to July 17, 2023. 

 Resolution #23,130, approving and authorizing execution of a contract for West 
Proflex with West Publishing Corporation relative to legal research service 
conducted by the City Attorney. 

 Resolution #23,131, approving and authorizing execution of an Offer to Buy Real 
Estate and Acceptance for 2.35 acres of property located at 2603 South Union 
Road relative to expansion of the West Viking Road Industrial Park. 

 Resolution #23,132, approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment 
to the Service/Product Agreement for Federally Funded Project with Iowa 
Northland Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for administration and 
technical services for activities relative to FY2023 (FFY2022) Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME funding project delivery. 

 Resolution #23,133, approving the Gateway Business Park Lot 2 Minor 
Subdivision Plat, a replat of Lot 2 of Gateway Business Park at Cedar Falls 1. 

 Resolution #23,134, approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a cutter for the Cedar Heights Lift Station. 

 Resolution #23,135, approving and authorizing execution of a contract with 
Quality Striping, Inc. relative to 2023 pavement marking services. 

 Resolution #23,136, approving and authorizing expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of a Street Paint Line Striping Unit for the Traffic Operations Section. 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

 Resolution #23,137, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement with Lehman Trucking & Excavating Inc. for demolition of structures 
relative to the Main Street Reconstruction project. 

 Resolution #23,138, approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction 
with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,139, receiving and filing, and rejecting the only bid received for 
the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase 1. 

 Resolution #23,140, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Owen Contracting, Inc. for the Cyber Lane Extension Project. 

 Resolution #23,141, receiving and filing, and setting May 1, 2023 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase 1A. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,129 through #23,141 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54267 -  It was moved by Sires and seconded by deBuhr that the bills and claims of April 
17, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
54268 - Councilmember Dunn commented on the success of the Career Fair and 

thanked staff for their participation. 
   
    Councilmember deBuhr asked about extending the reduced-price leaf pickup into 

May. City Attorney Rogers responded this would require an amendment to the 
fee schedule by a resolution. 

 
    Councilmember Sires commented that he was contacted by a citizen who would 

like to donate two Australian Labradoodles to the city as service dogs. 
 
    Mayor Green announced the ribbon cutting and open house for City Hall on May 

15th, from 4-6 P.M. He also reminded citizens of Earth Week activities. 
 
54269 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:45 P.M. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
  __________________________________ 
    Kim Kerr, CMC, Administrative Supervisor 

11

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: May 1, 2023  
 
 SUBJECT: Condemnation Hearing for 1312 Clay Street 
 
On March 4, 2023 the Condemnation Committee, selected by Mayor Green, inspected 
1312 Clay Street as per City Code Ordinance 7-20(15) IBC 115.3 Procedure for 
Condemnation and Removal.  Per the ordinance, the Mayor shall appoint three council 
members to inspect along with the building official, fire chief, and county health officer 
and report their findings to the City Council.  If the Committee reports the building is 
unsafe or dangerous the matter shall be set down for hearing at the next regular 
meeting of the Council.   
 
The appointed Committee consisted of Council members Kelly Dunn, Gil Shultz, and 
Simon Harding as well as Building Official Jamie Castle, acting Fire Chief John 
Zolondek, Code Enforcement Officer Adam Spray, and County Health Officers Jared 
Parameter and Eric Heinen.  The owner of the property was not on site at the time of 
the inspection.  The Committee entered the property by use of an Administrative 
Warrant. 
 
Notice to the property owner was completed per Section 7-20(15).  Since it could not be 
directly served to the property owner, it was mailed to their last known address and 
posted in the newspaper twice, 10 days prior to the hearing. 
 
Nuisance history of 1312 Clay Street: 

 2009 – Rear porch in disrepair and unsafe.  Porch removed in 2011 without 
proper reinstallation of rear egress. 

 2014 – Exterior maintenance.  Painting, broken siding, window casing – not 
resolved. 

 2020 through 2021 – Illegal Storage and Debris. Owner was in contact with the 
city and removed some items but issues remain. 

12

Item 2.



 2023 – February – Law enforcement summoned to property by Cedar Falls 
Utilities as they detected unusually high-water usage.  At this visit, it was found 
that there was a broken pipe which flooded the basement.  It was also found that 
the property was filled with items blocking doors.  Rodents were observed on the 
property.  It appeared that the homeowner was not currently occupying the 
home. 
 

Results of Condemnation Inspection: 
 
Exterior: 

 Exterior finish in disrepair.   
o Windows, doors, and screens are broken and/or torn.  Violation of §15-

2(31)(f) 
o Siding is damaged and patched with dissimilar materials.  Violation of §15-

2(31)(c,d) 

 Rear porch was removed without reinstalling any form of landing or code 
compliant stairs. Violation of §15-2(22) and IRC R311.3 

 Exterior storage of tires, appliances, and other items.  Violation of §15-2(22) 
 

Interior: 

 Basement affected by broken pipe.  Basement continues to be damp.  Due to the 
excessive water the basement is full of visible mold, standing water in open 
containers.  Violation of §15-2(24) 

 The home is insanitary.  Violation of §7-20(15) 
o There are piles throughout the building.  It is unknown the items within 

these piles, but the home had a mold and trash smell throughout.   
o Utilities have been disconnected to this property. Violation of IRC 306.4, 

UPC 102.3, UPC 601.2.1 
o It was evident there were rodents in all portions of the home.   

 The home is unsafe.  Violation of §7-20(15)  
o The home is full of debris with no clear path of egress to any door within 

the home.  Piles of trash and debris cover the floors making the doors 
difficult to open and the walking path unlevel and unsafe. Violation of IRC 
R311.1 

o All stairs had trash and other debris on them making them unsafe for use. 
Violation of IRC R311.7 

o Several of the rooms were inaccessible due to the debris blocking the path 
and use of doors.  Violation of IRC R311.1 

o Kitchen was not accessible to verify condition. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13

Item 2.



1312 Clay Street Photos: 

 

 

   
 

   
   
 
 
 

14

Item 2.



 
 

 
 

15

Item 2.



Staff wishes to note that due to the history of violations with this property, the 
uninhabitable condition (due to lack of utilities, water damage, and fire hazard), and the 
building's potential structural issues due to neglect of protective systems, it is doubtful 
the property can be properly rehabilitated.  Demolition may be needed.      

    
Recommendation: 

 
The Department of Community Development recommends the following: 
 

1. City Council declare the property a nuisance. 

2. City Council order abatement of the nuisance.   The nuisance must be either 

completely abated or a viable plan of action with a detailed schedule for 

completion of the abatement must be submitted to the Building Official by 4:00 

PM May 15, 2023.  The Building Official will be granted authority to reinspect the 

property after 4:00 PM on May 15, 2023 to determine compliance if a viable plan 

of action was not submitted.  If a viable plan is submitted and approved, the 

building official will also be granted the authority to periodically reinspect the 

property to ensure the plan is being met as submitted.  A reinspection fee of $75 

shall be assessed for every inspection after the initial inspection to ensure 

compliance. 

a. A viable plan requires: 

i. All work to be complete by July 15, 2023.   

ii. The work to be complete includes all trash and debris is removed 

from the interior and exterior of the home, house is clean and 

sanitized, mold is remediated, exterior is properly repaired and 

meets city ordinances, damaged waterlines repaired by a licensed 

plumber, and utilities are restored (this will include any required 

inspections to reconnect the gas). 

3. If the owner fails to either submit a viable plan of action or abate the nuisance by 

May 15, 2023, the Building Official is hereby directed to do whatever may be 

necessary to remove such nuisance by demolition or removal of the home, and 

to levy the cost of such abatement as a lien upon the above-described real 

estate, to be collected in the same manner as property taxes.   

4. If the owner fails to meet the plan by July 15, 2023, the Building Official is hereby 

directed to do whatever may be necessary to remove such nuisance by 

demolition or removal of the home, and to levy the cost of such abatement as a 

lien upon the above-described real estate, to be collected in the same manner as 

property taxes.   

 

 

16

Item 2.



1312 Clay Street
Community Development Department

Public Hearing

May 1, 2023

17

Item 2.



Condemnation Committee

March 4, 2023 Condemnation Committee inspected 

1312 Clay Street by use of Administrative Warrant.

Committee Members:

Councilmember Kelly Dunn

Councilmember Gil Schultz

Councilmember Simon Harding

Building Official Jamie Castle

Acting Fire Chief John Zolondek

County Health Officers Eric Heinen and Jared Parameter

Code Enforcement Officer Adam Spray

18

Item 2.



Nuisance History

Past History:

2009 Disrepair of back porch.  Porch removed in 2011 

without proper reinstallation of rear egress.

2014 Exterior maintenance. 

2020 and 2021 Illegal storage and debris.

19

Item 2.



Nuisance History

Concerns resulting in Condemnation Committee:

• February 17, 2023 – Law enforcement summoned to property by Cedar 

Falls Utilities as they detected an unusually high-water usage.  

• Found property was vacant.  Pipe had burst – flooding basement.  

Hoarding was discovered.

• Public Safety provided body cam footage to Inspections Services leading 

to the call for a Condemnation Committee.

20

Item 2.



Violations Found

21

Item 2.



Violations Found

22

Item 2.



Violations Found

23

Item 2.



Violations Found

24

Item 2.



Violations Found

25

Item 2.



Staff Recommendation
• City Council declare the property a nuisance.

• City Council order abatement of the nuisance.  By 4:00 pm on May 15, 2023:

• Completely abated or

• Viable plan of action with a detailed schedule for completion of the 

abatement is submitted.  

• If the owner fails to complete either option, Building Official is directed to 

remove, correct or abate the nuisance by demolition or removal.  All costs to be 

covered by the property owner.

26

Item 2.



Staff Recommendation
• A viable plan shall include – all work completed by July 15, 2023:

• All trash and debris removed from the home and yard,

• House is clean and sanitized, 

• Rodents removed,

• Mold abatement specialist utilized to clean basement,

• 3rd party inspection to review structural integrity of home,

• Exterior maintenance completed (painting, window repair),

• Approved egress added to rear door where porch removed, and

• Utilities are restored.

• If the owner fails to complete either option, Building Official is directed to 

remove, correct or abate the nuisance by demolition or removal.  All costs 

to be covered by the property owner.

27

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: April 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1A 
  City Project Number: CP-197-3244 
  Public Hearing 
 
 
This project will reconstruct West Ridgewood Drive from (and including part of) 
Greenwood Avenue to Cherry Lane. Work includes reconstruction of water main, storm 
and sanitary sewers, slope repairs, installation of new 8” subdrain, asphalt pavement with 
concrete curb and/or edging, and concrete intersections. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $3,387,259.70. The project 
will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, Sanitary Sewer 
Rental Fund, and General Obligation Bond.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the revised North Cedar 
Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1A. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

28

Item 3.



 Engineer's 

Estimate  

Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Total Unit Price Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Total

1 2010-108A CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 142.7 142.7 160.00$             22,832.00$              -$                     -$                     22,832.00$                   

2 2010-108B CLEARING AND GRUBBING AC 0.3 0.3 70,000.00$        21,000.00$              -$                     -$                     21,000.00$                   

3 2010-108B GRUBBING (BY AREA) AC 1 1 49,500.00$        49,500.00$              -$                     -$                     49,500.00$                   

4 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED CY 534 534 32.50$               17,355.00$              -$                     -$                     17,355.00$                   

5 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED, SLOPE REPAIR CY 1050 1050 32.50$               34,125.00$              -$                     -$                     34,125.00$                   

6 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE CY 1764 1764 17.50$               30,870.00$              -$                     -$                     30,870.00$                   

7 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 4395 4395 14.00$               61,530.00$              -$                     -$                     61,530.00$                   

8 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, BORROW,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 7978 7978 23.00$               183,494.00$            -$                     -$                     183,494.00$                 

9 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 1565 1565 18.50$               28,952.50$              -$                     -$                     28,952.50$                   

10 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 13 CY 10 10 125.00$             1,250.00$                -$                     -$                     1,250.00$                     

11 2010-108G SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. SY 3889 3889 2.15$                 8,361.35$                -$                     -$                     8,361.35$                     

12 2010-108I SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID SY 100 100 8.00$                 800.00$                   -$                     -$                     800.00$                        

13 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 6 IN. SY 203 203 22.00$               4,466.00$                -$                     -$                     4,466.00$                     

14 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 12 IN. SY 4333 4333 18.00$               77,994.00$              -$                     -$                     77,994.00$                   

15 3010-108D REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TON 100 100 35.00$               3,500.00$                -$                     -$                     3,500.00$                     

16 2501-8400172 TEMPORARY SHORING LS 1 1 600,000.00$     -$                          -$                     600,000.00$       600,000.00$                 

17 4010-108A

SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL 

CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 8 IN. LF 1166 1166 165.00$             -$                          -$                     192,390.00$       192,390.00$                 

18 4010-108A SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHLESS, PVC, 8 IN. LF 206 206 175.00$             -$                          -$                     36,050.00$         36,050.00$                   

19 4010-108E SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LF 141 141 165.00$             -$                          -$                     23,265.00$         23,265.00$                   

20 4010-108 SANITARY SEWER PIPE INSULATION LF 104 104 30.00$               -$                          -$                     3,120.00$            3,120.00$                     

21 4010-108H REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER LF 975 975 23.50$               22,912.50$              -$                     -$                     22,912.50$                   

22 4010-108I SANITARY SEWER CLEAN OUT EACH 1 1 4,500.00$          -$                          -$                     4,500.00$            4,500.00$                     

23 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 15 IN. LF 221 221 115.00$             25,415.00$              -$                     -$                     25,415.00$                   

24 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 18 IN. LF 175 175 125.00$             21,875.00$              -$                     -$                     21,875.00$                   

25 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 24 IN. LF 108 108 230.00$             24,840.00$              -$                     -$                     24,840.00$                   

26 4020-108D REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER, RCP, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 122 122 25.00$               3,050.00$                -$                     -$                     3,050.00$                     

27 4030-108B 18" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1 1 1,500.00$          1,500.00$                -$                     -$                     1,500.00$                     

28 4030-108B 24" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 4 4 1,700.00$          6,800.00$                -$                     -$                     6,800.00$                     

29 4030-108C RCP APRON FOOTINGS 4030.221 EACH 5 5 1,500.00$          7,500.00$                -$                     -$                     7,500.00$                     

30 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED PLASTIC PIPE, TYPE SP, 8 IN. DIA. LF 1764.5 1764.5 18.50$               32,643.25$              -$                     -$                     32,643.25$                   

31 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, 6 IN. DIA. DR-303, TYPE 11 LF 995.7 995.7 17.00$               16,926.90$              -$                     -$                     16,926.90$                   

32 CFD.01 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, CFD.01 EACH 14 14 600.00$             8,400.00$                -$                     -$                     8,400.00$                     

33 4040-108D SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, 4040.233 EACH 1 1 650.00$             650.00$                   -$                     -$                     650.00$                        

34 4040-108E SUBDRAIN TAP, 6" EACH 14 14 650.00$             9,100.00$                -$                     -$                     9,100.00$                     

35 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 8 IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 1902.68 1902.68 145.00$             -$                          275,888.60$       -$                     275,888.60$                 

36 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 6IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 5 5 325.00$             -$                          1,625.00$            -$                     1,625.00$                     

37 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 4IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 14 14 150.00$             -$                          2,100.00$            -$                     2,100.00$                     

38 5010-108C FITTINGS BY WEIGHT, DUCTILE IRON LBS 3279.3 3279.3 25.00$               -$                          81,982.50$         -$                     81,982.50$                   

39 5010-108E WATER SERVICE, 1 IN LF 192 192 155.00$             -$                          29,760.00$         -$                     29,760.00$                   

40 5010-108F WATERMAIN ABANDONMENT, CAP EACH 10 10 1,350.00$          -$                          13,500.00$         -$                     13,500.00$                   

41 5010-108H WATERMAIN REMOVAL LF 60 60 20.00$               -$                          1,200.00$            -$                     1,200.00$                     

42 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN EACH 8 8 3,600.00$          -$                          28,800.00$         -$                     28,800.00$                   

43 5020-108C FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 4 4 9,300.00$          -$                          37,200.00$         -$                     37,200.00$                   

44 5020-108J HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, REMOVAL EACH 3 3 1,700.00$          -$                          5,100.00$            -$                     5,100.00$                     

45 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 48 IN. EACH 8 8 11,000.00$        -$                          -$                     88,000.00$         88,000.00$                   

46 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 60 IN. EACH 2 2 25,000.00$        -$                          -$                     50,000.00$         50,000.00$                   

47 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 72 IN. EACH 1 1 50,000.00$        -$                          -$                     50,000.00$         50,000.00$                   

48 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 48 IN. EACH 1 1 7,500.00$          7,500.00$                -$                     -$                     7,500.00$                     

49 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 60 IN. EACH 1 1 9,500.00$          9,500.00$                -$                     -$                     9,500.00$                     

50 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.505 EACH 5 5 11,500.00$        57,500.00$              -$                     -$                     57,500.00$                   

51 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.510 EACH 1 1 17,600.00$        17,600.00$              -$                     -$                     17,600.00$                   

52 6010-108C DROP CONNECTION SANITARY SEWER, 8 IN., EXTERNAL EACH 2 2 7,800.00$          -$                          -$                     15,600.00$         15,600.00$                   

53 6010-108H REMOVALS, MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 1 7 8 1,400.00$          1,400.00$                -$                     9,800.00$            11,200.00$                   

54 7010-108A PCC PAVEMENT, CLASS C-4, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 7 IN. SY 581 581 100.00$             58,100.00$              -$                     -$                     58,100.00$                   

55 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, SLOPED, 4 IN. LF 1280 1280 43.50$               55,680.00$              -$                     -$                     55,680.00$                   

56 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, DROPPED, 0 IN. LF 1715 1715 42.00$               72,030.00$              -$                     -$                     72,030.00$                   

57 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, 6" PCC SY 126 126 74.00$               9,324.00$                -$                     -$                     9,324.00$                     

58 7020-108B 7" HMA ST SY 2166.7 2166.7 75.00$               162,502.50$            -$                     -$                     162,502.50$                 

59 7030-108A REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 196.7 196.7 12.00$               2,360.40$                -$                     -$                     2,360.40$                     

60 7030-108H DRIVEWAYS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 196.7 196.7 90.00$               17,703.00$              -$                     -$                     17,703.00$                   

61 7030-108H CLASS A ROADSTONE TON 21.2 21.2 80.00$               1,696.00$                -$                     -$                     1,696.00$                     

62 7040-108H REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 3116.2 3116.2 11.00$               34,278.20$              -$                     -$                     34,278.20$                   

63 2505-4008120 REMOVAL OF GUARDRAIL LF 76 76 15.00$               1,140.00$                -$                     -$                     1,140.00$                     

64 8030-108A TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 1 25,000.00$        25,000.00$              -$                     -$                     25,000.00$                   

65 2401-6745765 LIGHT POLES, REMOVE EACH 1 1 600.00$             600.00$                   -$                     -$                     600.00$                        

66 2523-0000100

LIGHT POLES, 28' METAL POLE W/ DIRECT BURIED AND 6' 

MAST ARM EACH 2 2 4,500.00$          9,000.00$                -$                     -$                     9,000.00$                     

67 2523-0000200 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 35 35 50.00$               1,750.00$                -$                     -$                     1,750.00$                     

68 2528-2518000 SAFETY CLOSURE EACH 10 10 200.00$             2,000.00$                -$                     -$                     2,000.00$                     

69 8040-108B TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM SF 45.5 45.5 32.00$               1,456.00$                -$                     -$                     1,456.00$                     

70 8040-108D PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 50 50 30.00$               1,500.00$                -$                     -$                     1,500.00$                     

71 8040-108G PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE ANCHOR EACH 5 5 150.00$             750.00$                   -$                     -$                     750.00$                        

72 8040-108I REMOVE & REINSTALL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 4 4 225.00$             900.00$                   -$                     -$                     900.00$                        

73 2524-6765210 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 1 1 250.00$             250.00$                   -$                     -$                     250.00$                        

74 9010-108D WATERING MGAL 50 50 135.00$             6,750.00$                -$                     -$                     6,750.00$                     

75 9010-108B

SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRO-

SEEDING, TYPE 4 ACRE 1.2 1.2 3,650.00$          4,380.00$                -$                     -$                     4,380.00$                     

76 9010-108B

SEEDING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING, 

WILDFLOWER SEED ACRE 1.2 1.2 9,750.00$          11,700.00$              -$                     -$                     11,700.00$                   

77 9020-108A SOD SQ 109 109 95.00$               10,355.00$              -$                     -$                     10,355.00$                   

78 9040-108E TEMPORARY RECP, TYPE 3B SY 5949 5949 1.40$                 8,328.60$                -$                     -$                     8,328.60$                     

79 9040-108F PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. LF 3159 3159 2.25$                 7,107.75$                -$                     -$                     7,107.75$                     

80 9040-108F

REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL 

DEVICE LF 3159 3159 1.00$                 3,159.00$                -$                     -$                     3,159.00$                     

81 9040-108J

REVETMENT, CLASS E RIP RAP APRON (& ENG.

FABRIC) FOR PIPE OUTLET, 9040.111 TON 175 175 60.00$               10,500.00$              -$                     -$                     10,500.00$                   

82 9040-108N SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, INSTALLATION LF 836 836 2.00$                 1,672.00$                -$                     -$                     1,672.00$                     

83 9040-108N

SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, REMOVAL OF 

DEVICE LF 836 836 0.75$                 627.00$                   -$                     -$                     627.00$                        

84 9040-108O CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SY 55 55 75.00$               4,125.00$                -$                     -$                     4,125.00$                     

85 9040-108R TURF REINFORCEMENT MATTING (TYPE 3) SQ 4 4 135.00$             540.00$                   -$                     -$                     540.00$                        

86 9040-108T INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. EACH 9 9 75.00$               675.00$                   -$                     -$                     675.00$                        

UnitItem Description Item CodeItem No.

Engineer's Estimate of Costs
North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1A 

Cedar Falls Project No.: RC-092-3271

AECOM Project No.: 60672593

4/10/2023

 Estimated Quantities  Estimated Costs 

29

Item 3.



87 9040-108T

MAINTENANCE OF INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT 

CONTROL DEVICE

CONTROL DEVICE EACH 9 9 50.00$               450.00$                   -$                     -$                     450.00$                        

88 9070 REMOVAL OF EXISTING LANDSCAPING LS 1 1 15,000.00$        15,000.00$              -$                     -$                     15,000.00$                   

89 9070 REMOVE AND REINSTALL RETAINING WALL, AS PER PLAN SF 184 184 250.00$             46,000.00$              -$                     -$                     46,000.00$                   

90 2602-0000500 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER LF 8 8 25.00$               200.00$                   -$                     -$                     200.00$                        

91 2602-0000510

MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT 

FILTER EACH 1 1 50.00$               50.00$                      -$                     -$                     50.00$                          

92 2602-0000520

REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT 

FILTER EACH 1 1 50.00$               50.00$                      -$                     -$                     50.00$                          

93 2602-0000530 GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 12 12 185.00$             2,220.00$                -$                     -$                     2,220.00$                     

94 2602-0000540 MAINTENANCE OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 12 12 50.00$               600.00$                   -$                     -$                     600.00$                        

95 2602-0000550 REMOVAL OR GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 12 12 50.00$               600.00$                   -$                     -$                     600.00$                        

96 11020-108A MOBILIZATION LS 1 1 250,000.00$     250,000.00$            -$                     -$                     250,000.00$                 

97 11030-108A MAILBOX, REMOVE AND REINSTALL EA 12 12 485.00$             5,820.00$                -$                     -$                     5,820.00$                     

98 11050-108A CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 1 6,000.00$          6,000.00$                -$                     -$                     6,000.00$                     

Division 1- Roadway Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Total

Division 2 - CFU Water Main 1,676,071.95$         477,156.10$       1,072,725.00$    3,225,953.05$              

Division 3 - Sanitary Sewer

Contingency (5%) 161,297.65$                 

Engineer's Estimate of Construction Costs 3,387,250.70$              

30

Item 3.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: April 3, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Zoning Code Text Amendment (TA22-005) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Zoning Text Amendment - Add hair salon as potential conditional use of 
defunct institutional buildings 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Chad Welsh, Owner of 209 Walnut (former Church) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Code change would be applicable to any defunct institutional building 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
We received a request for an amendment to the zoning code to add hair salons to the list of 
uses allowed for consideration as a conditional use of a defunct institutional building. The 
applicant is requesting this change because they would like to have an opportunity to apply to 
the Board of Adjustment for a conditional use to repurpose the church building they own at 209 
Walnut Street for use as a hair salon. Personal service uses such as a salon are not currently 
listed as a qualifying use for consideration under this provision of the zoning code. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The following are the current uses eligible for consideration by the Board of Adjustment if an 
owner of a church building would like to adaptively reuse their building as provided for in Section 
26-140 of the Zoning Code, adopted in 2021: 
 

 Hospitality-oriented uses such as: retreat facilities, convention centers, guesthouses, 
meeting halls, and event facilities; 

 Conversion to a multi-unit dwelling in a zone where such use is not otherwise allowed or 
where the proposed number of units exceeds the number otherwise allowed in the zone; 

 Community service uses such as: libraries, museums, senior centers, community 
centers, neighborhood centers, day care facilities, youth club facilities, social service 
facilities, and vocational training facilities for the physically or mentally disabled; 

31

Item 4.



 
 

 Specialized educational facilities such as: music schools, dramatic schools, dance 
studios, martial arts studios, language schools, and short-term examination preparatory 
schools; 

 Professional office uses such as: accountants, lawyers, architects, or similar. 
 
When drafting the original code provision, staff considered other uses that would be similar to 
the community assembly-type activity level of a church, such as the hospitality and community 
service uses listed above. Since these buildings often have large interior spaces that might be 
conducive to classrooms, we included specialized educational uses as an option. There has 
been at least one church in the community that has successfully been converted to apartments 
(in an R-4 zone; not conditional use), so multi-unit dwellings were listed as a possibility. 
Professional office uses are typically fairly low impact uses, so were included as well. Staff felt 
that this list was liberal enough to be useful but limited enough to be appropriate for residential 
zones. The applicant maintains that it is not liberal enough since some neighborhoods may be in 
favor of lighter retail or personal service uses and that determination can be made by the Board 
of Adjustment with any neighborhood input received. With that in mind, below is a breakdown of 
pros and cons of changing the code to allow personal service uses, such as a hair salon to be 
considered. 
 

Pros 
 The traffic and activity of a hair salon or 

similar personal service use may be less 
imposing to a neighborhood than a church 
or some of the other community assembly 
uses listed. 

 Hair salons and other similar personal 
services are common home occupations 
and may not be any more obtrusive than a 
professional office use.  

 Adding it to the list in City code does not 
grant any automatic right to a use, as the 
Board of Adjustment can reject any 
proposal if it is not a good fit for the 
subject property.  

 Neighbors are notified and given 
opportunity to oppose or provide input to 
the Board of Adjustment. 

 Conditions can be imposed by the Board 
of Adjustment to make a use better fit for 
the neighborhood context, such as limiting 
the hours of operation, exterior lighting, 
and signage. 

 A broader use list can provide greater 
utility of the conditional use code 
provision, particularly for smaller 
properties that may not be able to 
accommodate the traffic and activities for 
a community assembly-type use.  

Cons 
 Some retail sales and service uses may 

be considered more controversial in 
residential neighborhoods than the other 
uses listed in the conditional use code 
provision. 

 The conditional use code provision has not 
been in effect very long. Therefore, the 
Board of Adjustment has yet to review a 
conditional use case and develop their 
experience in considering this kind of land 

use matter.  
 Text amendments have application across 

the community for any defunct institutional 
site, so will not just apply to the property 
owned by the applicant.  

 Expanding the list could spur further 
requests for amendments to allow a 
broader range of uses.  

 There were concerns about the conditional 
use code provision when initially 
considered and adopted. Perhaps the 
concept should be tested before it is 
expanded any further.  

 With broader use considerations, 
neighborhood residents close to churches 
may need to be more vigilant and be 
willing to provide input when a re-use is 
considered.   

 
The pros and cons to expanding the uses are fairly balanced as there are near-equal benefits, 

32

Item 4.



 
 

risks, and safeguards. As such, there is not a clear answer as to whether some retail services 
should be added to the conditional use provision or not. However, staff feels that the current 
code as constituted provides plenty of appropriate options for consideration when a church or 
other institutional use becomes vacant.  It may be wise to hold off on expanding the uses until 
the provision is more tested.   
 
PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENT 
If the Commission is inclined to recommend approval of this request, staff suggests the following 
wording be added to Section 26-140(e)(1)a. of the Zoning Code, which lists the use category, 
but then restricts it so that only those uses specifically listed would be allowed for consideration.  
 

6. Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe repair, tailoring services, therapy-based 

services, and photographic studios.  

 
These uses are primarily appointment-based services used by all ages, and thus may be more 
appropriate in neighborhood contexts than other retail or service uses that have more 
unpredictable levels of activity. In addition, staff believes that, if approved, this limited approach 
would accomplish the applicant’s objective without adding a seemingly arbitrary salon use on its 
own.  While staff does not fully support this text amendment, if it is adopted the Board of 
Adjustment may reject any conditional use proposal or impose any reasonable conditions based 
on neighborhood input.  
 
Notice of public hearing at the Planning and Zoning Commission was published in the WCF 
Courier twice: once on February 15, 2023 and then again on March 2, 2023. This was discussed 
and voted on at their March 8, 2023 meeting. 
 
Notice of Public Hearing at Council was published in the WCF Courier on March 24, 2023. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on March 8, 2023, the Commission voted (5 
ayes to 1 nay) to recommend approval of amendments to add limited personal service uses to 
the list of eligible conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings as outlined in the staff report 
above.  
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION 
Discussion 
2/8/2023 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment to expand a list of potential 
conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings. Chair Lynch introduced the item and 
Mr. Sevy provided background information. He explained that a request was received for 
a zoning text amendment that would allow the addition of hair salons to the list of eligible 
uses in such buildings. He discussed current uses that are eligible for consideration and 
explained that salons would not fall under the professional office uses that are allowed. 
They are considered to be a personal service use. Mr. Sevy provided the pros and cons 
to allowing this kind of business to operate in such buildings. The proposed text 
amendment would read “Personal service uses limited to hair salons, shoe repair, 
tailoring services, therapy-based services and photographic studios.” These uses are 
primarily appointment-based services used by all ages which may make them more 
appropriate in neighborhood context than other retail or service uses. Staff feels that, if 
approved, the limited approach would accomplish the applicant’s objective without 
adding a seemingly arbitrary salon use on its own. Staff does not fully support the text 
amendment. If it is adopted the Board of Adjustment may still reject any conditional use, 

33

Item 4.



 
 

proposal or impose any reasonable conditions based on neighborhood input. Staff 
recommends that the Commission discuss the proposed zoning code amendment and 
set a public hearing date for formal consideration and recommendation to City Council. 

Chad Welsh, 6701 Strayer Road, spoke as the applicant regarding the item, noting that 
the proposed business is intended to be more of a makeup and brow salon. Mr. Sevy 
noted that he hadn’t been given that clarification. Mr. Welsh stated that he is available 
for any questions.  

Steven Jordan, 2510 Cottage Row Road, spoke as Mr. Welsh’s realtor and stated that 
the item will still go through Board of Adjustment approval. 

Mr. Larson suggested changing the business category to salon instead of hair salon to 
avoid making the description so specific. 

Ms. Crisman asked for a definition of a defunct institutional building and what it would 
apply to. Mr. Sevy explained that it applies to an empty building that is not currently 
being used for it’s purpose. Ms. Howard clarified that it has to be an institutional use 
building such as a church or school.  

Mr. Hartley stated that he likes the idea of being able to repurpose buildings that would 
otherwise typically stay empty. Ms. Moser agreed with the sentiment.  

Mr. Larson made a motion to move the item to public hearing. Ms. Crisman seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Larson, 
Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 
 

Public 
Hearing 
3/8/2023 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment regarding expanding the list of 
potential conditional uses of defunct institutional buildings. Chair Lynch introduced the 
item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. He noted that this item was 
presented at the February 8 meeting and gave a recap of what was discussed. He 
discussed the current uses that are eligible for consideration in a defunct building. He 
also covered the pros and cons of repurposing a church for the different uses. The 
proposed text amendment would state “Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe 
repair, tailoring services, therapy-based services, and photographic studios.” Staff 
recommends caution when allowing the possibility of retail services in residential 
neighborhoods for the time being and recommends disapproval of the amendment. 

Chad Welsh, petitioner (6701 Strayer Road), stated that he feels that projects should be 
on a case-by-case basis to allow for more potential projects. 

Stephen Jordan, real estate agent for the petitioner, (2510 Cottage Row Road), stated 
his support and said that he has spoken to many people in the community and that by 
and large the community is in favor of it. 

Mr. Hartley stated his support for being more open to repurposing old buildings and 
using available space when possible. 

Ms. Grybovych asked how the original list of provisions was developed. Mr. Sevy 
explained that it was considered in the context of churches and what has been done 
with them in other communities. Conditional uses are a newer concept to Cedar Falls 
and the goal was to be conservative with the list of uses while still allowing a reasonable 
avenue for adaptive reuse. He displayed some of the currently eligible uses.  

Mr. Larson feels that the simple change in language is adding something explicitly that 
has a similar impact and nature of business to the other ones on the list. He agreed with 
Mr. Hartley in his support.  

Ms. Crisman stated that she believes that repurposing a building is, if possible, always 

34

Item 4.



 
 

the best choice when considering the environmental impact and cost of resources. 

Ms. Grybovych noted concern with adding such specific uses as opposed to making a 
broader category.  

Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Larson, Leeper and 
Lynch), and 1 nay (Grybovych). 

 

35

Item 4.



Prepared by: Chris Sevy, Planner I, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3026 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 26-140. CONDITIONAL USES, OF DIVISION 1, 
GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF 
CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA TO ADD CERTAIN PERSONAL SERVICE USES TO THE LIST OF LAND 
USES THAT QUALIFY FOR CONDITIONAL USE CONSIDERATION FOR THE ADAPTIVE 
RE-USE OF DEFUNCT INSTITUTIONAL BUILDINGS IN RESIDENCE DISTRICTS.  
 
WHEREAS, Section 26-140 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, adopted in 2021, contains a 

list of uses that qualify for conditional use consideration for the adaptive re-use of defunct institutional 
buildings on a case-by-case basis as reviewed and approved by the Board of Adjustment, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an application seeking a zoning code text amendment to add 

“salon” to the list of uses which qualify for conditional use consideration for the adaptive re-use of 
defunct institutional buildings; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed (Case TA22-003) and 

determined that allowing certain personal service uses to qualify for consideration as a conditional use 
to adaptively re-use defunct institutional buildings located in residential zones as reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Adjustment, is a reasonable amendment to the zoning code since personal 
service uses such as a salon have a similar impact and nature of business to other uses that qualify, 
and the repurposing of a building is beneficial to the community and can have a significantly lower 
cost and environmental impact compared to new construction. Therefore, the Commission 
recommended approval; and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Paragraph (e)(1)a. within Section 26-140. Conditional Uses, within Division 1, 
Generally, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to add an untitled paragraph 6., 
as follows:  
 

6. Personal service uses limited to salons, shoe repair, tailoring services, therapy-based 

services, and photographic studios. 

 

 
INTRODUCED:     April 3, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 3, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:   April 17, 2023   

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
____________________________ 

ATTEST:      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

36

Item 4.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: April 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Zoning Code Text Amendment – Signs for Civic/Institutional Uses in Downtown 

Character District (TA23-001) 

 

 
Background 
 
The City received an inquiry from St. Patrick Catholic Church about replacing an existing 

monument sign that has an electronic message center (EMC) at their school located in the 

Downtown Character District.  St. Patrick Church and School are located in the Urban General 

and Urban General 2 frontage areas within the Downtown Character District. Properties 

designated as Urban General and Storefront frontages are subject to the sign standards in 

Section 26-194.L, Signage [in the Downtown Character District]. New free-standing signs are 

not allowed in the Urban General and Storefront and EMCs are restricted to marquee signs, as 

defined in the code.   

 

The intent of the Urban General and Storefront frontages is to encourage buildings to be built 

close to the street so that street frontages are lined with buildings to support a pedestrian-

friendly, main-street mixed-use district. A transition to pedestrian-scaled storefront signage is 

anticipated as infill occurs. To that end, there is an incentive in the code to encourage 

replacement of existing freestanding signs with other allowed types of building signage, such as 

wall signs and projecting signs. That being said, there are a number of civic and institutional 

uses in the Urban General frontage areas, including St. Patrick Church and School, the First 

Methodist Church, the First Presbyterian Church, and Lincoln Elementary School.  Similar to 

other churches and schools, these properties have larger open spaces on their properties for 

playgrounds, gathering spaces, and parking lots and often have monument signs with an EMC. 

While civic and institutional buildings are exempt from certain standards in the new Character 

District Code, there is no specific exemption or alternative signage allowance for civic uses in 

these areas.   

 
Analysis 
 
The intent of the Downtown Character District Code is to facilitate development that is 

consistent with the adopted Downtown Vision Plan. One of the major objectives of the Vision 

37

Item 5.



 
 

Plan is to encourage future development that helps preserve the character of the Downtown 

area.  Churches and schools and other institutional uses are important to the character and 

livability of the downtown neighborhoods. Since they operate differently than commercial or 

residential uses, it makes sense to have different rules that apply, provided any changes are 

also sensitive to and complementary to other uses intended for the area.  

 

All the institutions mentioned above are located between the Downtown core and the 

Neighborhood Frontage Districts.  Properties located in the Neighborhood Frontages are 

allowed signage according to the sign standards in the R-1 Zoning District, since these areas 

are intended to maintain the residential character of the existing neighborhoods that surround 

downtown. In the R-1 Zoning District, permitted uses other than single family homes and 

duplexes, such as schools and churches, are allowed monument signs not to exceed 30 square 

feet in area and 5 feet in height. EMCs are also allowed. Given that many institutional uses will 

continue to have open space on their properties where monument signs could be located and 

many of the institutional uses both in this area and in surrounding neighborhoods have 

electronic messaging centers, staff finds that it would be reasonable to amend the code to allow 

them in a similar manner as allowed in the Neighborhood Frontage Districts.    

 

Discussion of Solutions 

 

In order to allow new monument signs and EMCs for civic and institutional uses in the Urban 

General and Storefront frontages in the Downtown Character District, the zoning code must be 

amended. Staff recommends that the following change be considered: 

 

 Amend paragraph 26-194L.2, as follows:  

 

2.   Applicability 

The standards in this section apply to any sign that is CLEARLY VISIBLE FROM THE 

STREET-SPACE in the frontages designated as Urban General or Storefront, except for 

signs for Civic and Institutional Uses, as defined in this Chapter. Signs for Civic and 

Institutional Uses located in a Character District and signs in the Neighborhood 

Frontages are regulated according to the sign standards for the R-1 zoning district. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

At their meeting on March 22, 2023, on a vote of 6-0, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the zoning code text amendment.  

 
Minutes from the Planning and Zoning Commission meetings are attached below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38

Item 5.



 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
 

Discussion 
2/8/2023 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a zoning text 
amendment to modify sign allowance for Civic and Institutional Uses in the 
Downtown Character District. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that St. Patrick’s School has 
asked to replace the existing monument sign. She stated that new freestanding 
signs are not allowed in the Urban General and Storefront frontages. Institutional 
and civic uses are different that other uses, so may need to be looked at a little 
differently when it comes to signage.  She noted that in the Neighborhood 
frontages of the Downtown Character District, institutional uses are allowed 
signage similar to what is allowed in the R-1 Zone. Staff wants to discuss a 
solution that would allow signage for institutional uses in all frontage districts of 
the Downtown Character District according to the standards in the R-1 District. 
The result would be that all institutional and civic uses in the Downtown 
Character District would be treated the same with regard to signage allowances.  
Staff recommends gathering comments from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the public and set a public hearing for the next Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting on March 22, 2023. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to set the public hearing date for 3/22/23. Ms. 
Grybovych seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 
ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson, Leeper and Lynch), and 0 nays. 

 

Discussion 
3/22/2023 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a Zoning Text 
Amendment modifying the sign allowance for Civic and Institutional Uses in the 
Downtown Character District. Chair Lynch introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that there had been a request 
from St. Patrick’s School to replace their freestanding monument sign but 
current sign allowances for the Downtown Character District would not allow for 
the requested sign because the school is located in the Urban General 
Frontage District. She noted that Institutional and civic uses are different than 
other uses, so may need to be looked at a little differently when it comes to 
signage.  She noted that in the Neighborhood frontages of the Downtown 
Character District, institutional uses are allowed signage similar to what is 
allowed in the R-1 Zone, where monument signs with electronic message 
centers are allowed. Staff recommends amending the code to allow signage for 
institutional and civic uses in all frontage districts of the Downtown Character 
District according to the standards in the R-1 District. The result would be that 
all institutional and civic uses in the Downtown Character District would be 
treated the same with regard to signage allowances.  
 
Ms. Gryboych made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Larson, Leeper, Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 
 

 

39

Item 5.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street,  
Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5169 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3027 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SUBSECTION 26-194L. ARCHITECTURAL 
STANDARDS: SIGNAGE, OF DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF 
ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, 
ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA TO CHANGE HOW SIGNAGE IS REGULATED FOR CIVIC 
AND INSTITUTIONAL USES IN A CHARACTER DISTRICT.  

 
WHEREAS, Subsection 26-194L of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, sets forth the 

rules and regulations for signage in a Character District and applies to properties located in 
the Urban General and Storefront Frontage areas of the Downtown Character District; and 

 
WHEREAS, churches, schools, and other civic and institutional uses are important to the 

character and livability of downtown neighborhoods, but size, operations, and site features for 
these uses are generally different from other uses in the mixed-use core of downtown, having 
generally larger open spaces for playgrounds, gathering spaces, and parking lots; and 

 
WHEREAS, rules for signage in the Urban General and Storefront Frontages of the 

Downtown Character District are intended to support main-street, mixed-use and storefront 
development, yet civic and institutional uses located along these frontages are more similar in 
character to institutional uses in the neighborhood frontage areas and thus it makes sense to 
regulate signage for said uses in a similar fashion as civic and institutional uses located in 
neighborhood frontages; and  

 
WHEREAS, signage for civic and institutional uses located in neighborhood frontage 

areas are regulated according to the same rules that apply in the R-1 Residence District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission on a vote of 6-0 

recommended approval of (TA23-001), an amendment to the zoning code to allow signage 
for civic and institutional uses located in the Downtown Character District according to the 
same rules as apply in the Neighborhood Frontages;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Subsection 26-194L., Architectural Standards: Signage, within Division 2, 
Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended, deleting 
paragraph 2, Applicability, and in lieu thereof replacing it with the following paragraph:  
 
2.   Applicability. 

The standards in this section apply to any sign that is CLEARLY VISIBLE FROM THE STREET-

SPACE in the frontages designated as Urban General or Storefront, except for signs for Civic 

and Institutional Uses, as defined in this Chapter. Signs for Civic and Institutional Uses located 

40

Item 5.



in a Character District and signs in the Neighborhood Frontages are regulated according to the 

sign standards for the R-1 zoning district. 

 
 
INTRODUCED:    April 17, 2023    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:  April 17, 2023    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

41

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
             TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: April 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request, formerly 4919 Hudson Road (RZ20-007) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from A-1 Agriculture District to R-1: Residence District. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

David Nicol; OWNER(S): David and Tamara Nicol, The City of Cedar Falls  
 

LOCATION: 
 

Formerly 4919 Hudson Road 

 

 
 
PROPOSAL 
The proposal is to rezone a 2.18-acre (94,960.8 SF) parcel owned by David Nichol and a 0.89-
acre (38,596 SF) parcel owned by the City located at on the west side of Hudson Road across 
from the intersection of Hudson Road and Ashworth Drive from A-1 Agriculture District to R-1 
Residence District. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The properties were part of a 3.07-acre farmstead that contained a house built in 1918. In April 
2022, the City purchased the south 0.89-acre portion of the Nicol’s property containing the 
house to connect Ashworth Drive in Prairie Winds 4th Addition eastward to Hudson Road. 
Ashworth Drive is a critical street connection in this area of the city, providing an east-west 
street connection from Greenhill Road through Greenhill Village to Hudson Road and from 
Hudson Road through the Prairie Winds Subdivision to Arbors Drive next to Aldrich Elementary 
School and will extend further to west as the city expands in the future.  Mr. Nicol would like to 
rezone the property from A-1 Agriculture to the R-1 Residence District to allow the subdivision 
of the property into residential lots similar in size to those on the north and west sides of the 
parcel. Since the new street (City property) is intended for the extension of Ashworth Drive, a 
residential street, the right-of-way for this future street should also be rezoned to R-1 (see 
location on next page). The properties adjacent to the north and west side of this parcel are 
zoned R-1 and the parcel to the south is zoned A-1 and contains a former barn converted to a 
residential structure.     
 

42

Item 6.



 
 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
CURRENT ZONING 
The purpose of the A-1 Agriculture District is to act as a “holding zone” in areas of the city that 
are undeveloped and not served by essential municipal services. These properties along with 
the property to the south are surrounded by residential uses and therefore, the current 
agriculture zoning is not consistent with the surrounding area.   
 
The request is to change the zoning on two parcels totaling 3.05 acres of land located along 
the west side of Hudson Road across from the intersection of Ashworth Drive. The property is 
currently not developed, but it had been the location of a residential structure which was 
located on the portion of the property purchased by the City for the extension of Ashworth 
Drive. 
 
PROPOSED ZONING 
The R-1 Residence District Zone will allow for one and two-unit dwellings, public and parochial 
schools, private noncommercial recreation areas by right and houses of worship with a 
Planning and Zoning recommendation to City Council. The site is surrounded by residential 
uses and therefore the zoning change will be compatible with the surrounding area and will 
allow for a higher and better use of the property in an area where there are existing support 
services available.   
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map identifies these two parcels as low density residential with typical 
densities of 1 to 4 units per acre. The requested R-1 zoning is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and the request would not require an amendment to the Future Land Use 
Map.  

43

Item 6.



 
ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES 
The property is in a developed area of the city and has access for connection to all utilities and 
public services. 
 
ACCESS TO ADEQUATE STREET NETWORK 
The property fronts on Hudson Road on the east and has a stub connection on the west to 
Ashworth Drive. The City purchased a portion of the parcel along the south side of the property 
with the intent of constructing Ashworth Drive between Hudson Road to the east and Kara 
Drive to the west. Upon completion of the connection the property will have adequate access 
to the street network. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
City staff mailed letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the rezoning 
request.  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities, has no concerns with the proposed 
rezoning request. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Gather any comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and public, then continue 
the discussion on this rezoning request and set the date for public hearing for the next 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on March 8, 2023.  
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
3/8/2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion 
& Vote 
3/22/2023 

Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided background information. 
The proposal is to rezone the property to allow for residential development. He 
explained that staff recommends gathering comments from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the public and set a public hearing for the next Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting on March 22, 2023. 
 
 Adam Daters, CGA Engineers introduced himself as the representative for the 
petitioner and made himself available for questions. 
 
 Mr. Leeper made a motion to set a public hearing for the next meeting. Ms. Crisman 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Larson, Leeper and Lynch), and 0 nays. 
 
 
Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Larson recused himself from the item. Mr. 
Weintraut provided background information, explaining that the property is located on 
Hudson Road west of Cypress Avenue and north of Tomahawk Lane. The petitioner 
would like to rezone the property to allow for two-unit dwelling units and parochial 
schools. He discussed how the petition fits in to the Future Land Use and 
Comprehensive Plan and noted that staff recommends approval of the rezoning.  
 
Ms. Grybovych asked about an email that was shared regarding roads not being 
extended and who would be responsible for development of the roads. Mr. Weintraut 
explained that the City is providing the road as it is a priority to make the needed 
connection.   
 

44

Item 6.



Ms. Crisman made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Moser seconded the motion. 
The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Leeper, 
Lynch and Moser), 1 abstention (Larson) and 0 nays. 

 
 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Rezoning request letter 
  Nicol Legal Description 
  Nicol Rezoning Exhibit Plat 
  City Legal Description 
  City Rezoning Exhibit 

   

45

Item 6.



â

â
â

â

Erik Rd

Glo
ria

 St

Algonquin Dr

No
rse

Dr

Sa
ma

nth
a C

ir

Ashworth Dr

Reese Rd

Vera Way

Kara Dr

Donald Dr

Hu
ds

on
 Rd

RP

R-1

MU

R-2R-3

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 8, 2023

Rezoning from A-1 to R-1
Formarly 4919 Hudson Rd.
(RZ23-001)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

46

Item 6.



Legal for Rezoning 
 

 

A part of the South ½ of the Northwest Quarter of Section No. 26, Township No. 89, Range No. 14 West 

of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, described as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the East Line of said Northwest Quarter 725.2 feet North of the Southeast corner 

of said Quarter: thence West right angles a distance of 215 feet; thence North at right angles a distance 

of 40 feet; thence West at right angles a distance of 435 feet; thence North at right angles a distance of 

205 feet; thence East at right angles a distance of 650 feet to the east line of said Northwest Quarter; 

thence South a distance of 245 feet to the point of beginning. EXCEPT those parts conveyed for road 

purposes in Land Deed Book 91 Page 491, Land Deed Book 553 Page 528, and Parcel C as described in 

File No. 2022-00025092 in the Office of Recorder, in Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

47

Item 6.



48

Item 6.



49

Item 6.



50

Item 6.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3028 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 3.07 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, 

REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE A-1, AGRICULTURE DISTRICT AND ADDING 

IT TO THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to rezone approximately 3.09 acres of property from A-1, Agriculture District to R-

1, Residence District, more specifically described below; and 

 

WHEREAS, said R-1 Residence Zoning District allows for residential development that 

meets the principles of the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and 

find that said rezoning is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and public 

services are available to support development according to the R-1 Residence Zoning District; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best interests of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said rezoning; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said rezoning; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance by reference; and 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

51

Item 6.



 Section 1.  That the following described real estate, be and the same is hereby removed 

from the A-1, Agriculture District and added to the R-1, Residence District: 

 

Legal Description 

 

Nicol Property: 

A part of the South ½ of the Northwest Quarter of Section No. 26, Township No. 89, 

Range No. 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, Black Hawk County, Iowa, described 

as follows: 

Beginning at a point on the East Line of said Northwest Quarter 725.2 feet North of the 

Southeast corner of said Quarter: thence West right angles a distance of 215 feet; thence 

North at right angles a distance of 40 feet; thence West at right angles a distance of 435 

feet; thence North at right angles a distance of 205 feet; thence East at right angles a 

distance of 650 feet to the east line of said Northwest Quarter; thence South a distance of 

245 feet to the point of beginning. EXCEPT those parts conveyed for road purposes in 

Land Deed Book 91 Page 491, Land Deed Book 553 Page 528, and Parcel C as described 

in File No. 2022-00025092 in the Office of Recorder, in Black Hawk County, Iowa. 

And 

City of Cedar Falls Property: 

That part of the Southeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section No. 26, 

Township 89 North, Range 14 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Cedar 

Falls, County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa, described as follows: 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 26, 

point being a 1/2  inch rebar in a monument box; thence North 00°42’50” West, along 

the East Line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 26, a distance of 725.14 feet 

(725.20 feet record); thence South 89°20’50” West, 62.52 feet to the presently 

established Westerly right-of-way line of Hudson Road, being the Southwest corner of 

a parcel of land described in Land Deed Book 553 Pages 528-529 in the Office of 

Black Hawk County Recorder, point also is on the South line of the parcel of land 

described in Document No. 2012-5324 in the Office of the Black Hawk County 

Recorder, point being a 1/2 rebar with License Number 2607, also being the Point of 

Beginning; thence South 89°20’50” West, along the south line of the parcel of land 

described in said Document No. 2012-5324, a distance of 152.48 feet, point being a 1-

1/2 inch pinch pipe; thence North 00°40,05” West, along the South line of the parcel 

of land described in said Document No. 2012-5324, a distance of 39.96 feet (40.00 

feet record), point being a 1-1/2 inch pinch pipe; thence South 89°16’14” West, along 

the South line of the parcel of land described in said Document No. 2012-5324, a 

distance of 435.09 feet (435.00 feet record) to the Northeast corner of Lot 22 of Prairie 

Winds 4th Addition, point being on the West line of the parcel of land described in 

said Document No. 2012-5324, point being a 1-1/2 inch iron pipe; thence North 

00°43’46” West, along the West line of the parcel of land described in said Document 

No. 2012-5324, a distance of 60.00 feet to the Southeast corner of Lot 21 of Prairie 

Winds 4th Addition, point being a ½ inch rebar with License Number 17162: thence 

North 89°16’14 East, 518.45 feet; thence South 00°44’42” East, 40.07 feet; thence 

52

Item 6.



North 89°20’50” East, 69.30 feet to the presently established Westerly right-of-way 

line of Hudson Road; thence South 00°30’30” east, 60.00 feet along the presently 

established Westerly right-of-way line of Hudson Road to the Point of Beginning. 

Containing 35,596 Square Feet or 0.87 Acre.  

 

 

INTRODUCED:     April 17, 2023   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 17, 2023   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

        _________________________ 

        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

53

Item 6.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: April 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request – Sands Property, North Cedar (RZ22-004) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone the southern 14.43 acres of the Sands property from A-1 Agricultural 
District to R-2 Residence District  (RZ22-004) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Jim Sands Construction LLC    

LOCATION: 
 

North of Black Hawk Park Addition and west of Cypress Avenue   

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant requests to rezone 14.43 
acres of land that is located north of Black 
Hawk Park Addition from A-1 Agricultural 
District to R-2 Residence District.  The 
rezoning will allow the development of 
residential lots of similar size to the 
surrounding residential lots. The property 
owner proposes to rezone the portion of 
the land that is known to be able to be 
serviced for sewer at this time.  This will 
allow the development of part of the 
subdivision while the applicant works to 
make sure that the northern 2/3s of the 
property is able to be supported by sewer.   
 
BACKGROUND 
The parcel has been within the A-1 
Agricultural District since the parcel was 
annexed into the City in 1971 and is being 
used for agricultural uses.  The land to the 
south and west of the property is zoned 

54

Item 7.



R-2 and developed as residential lots and the land to the north and east are within the A-1 
Agricultural District and being used for Agricultural uses.   
 
The current owner recently purchased this property with the intent of developing residential lots. 
The rezoning of this property must be carefully considered by evaluating the characteristics of 
the land and surrounding properties. This staff report will outline a number of these elements to 
have a firm understanding of the future use of this property. 
 
On March 2, 2023, the applicant asked for an additional 10 feet of land to the north to be 
included in the rezoning.  This changed the original proposal from 14.18 acres to 14.43 acres.  
Revised zoning map is included in the packet. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The applicant requests the properties to be rezoned to the R-2 District.  Rezoning 
considerations involve the evaluation of three main criteria: 
 

1)  Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the 
Comprehensive Plan? 

 
The rezoning request is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan or Future 
Designations. 

 
The purpose of A-1 Agricultural District is 
to act as a "holding zone" in areas of the 
city that are undeveloped and not served 
by essential municipal services (i.e., 
sanitary sewer, water, roadways) but 
where future growth and development is 
anticipated according to the 
Comprehensive Plan. The purpose of R-
2 Residential Zoning District is to provide 
opportunities for low density, detached 
and attached residential development in 
areas that are served by essential 
municipal services.   
 
The current land use map is designated 
as low density residential (yellow) and 
Parks and Rec (green).  
 
The property owner has indicated to the 
City that he is agreeable to adding a 
neighborhood park within the 
development.  A neighborhood park is typically 1-3 acres depending of the size of the 
neighborhood the park is serving. Park land or private neighborhood open space will be 
evaluated with the preliminary plat.    
 
In conclusion, Planning and Zoning Commission finds that the proposal is consistent with 
Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan.   

55

Item 7.



  
2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  

Yes, all utilities are readily available to the site. Sanitary sewer is available to the portion of 
the property that is being requested for rezoning to R-2.  The northern 2/3 of the property 
would have to be served from the north and is currently not readily available. Staff 
anticipates that if the rezoning is approved, the applicant will move forward with a 
preliminary plat that would maintain the northern portion as an outlot for future 
development.  Once a plan for extension of sewer to this portion is determined, a rezoning 
and further platting of the outlot would be required. Therefore, the property owner requests 
to rezone the southern 14.43 acres of the parcel that will be considered the first phase of 
the development. This portion of the property   can be serviced with sanitary sewer from 
the connections available at the dead ends of Hiawatha Road and Pocahontas Road.     
 

3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
The property owner has not demonstrated that the entire property has adequate roadway 
access; therefore, the property owner has chosen to rezone a portion of the property.  The 
14.43 acres has adequate roadway access from Hiawatha Road and Pocahontas Road 
which connects to Lone Tree Road.  Similar to extension of the sanitary sewer, future 
rezoning and platting of the northern 2/3 of the property could occur in the future when an 
adequate roadway network has been determined.   

 
NOTICES 
A notice was mailed to property owners within 300 feet of the part of the lot that is under 
consideration on February 14, 2023, regarding this rezoning request.  Due to the weather 
cancelation, a second notice was mailed on February 28, 2023.   
 
Notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing was published in the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls Courier on March 14, 2023.   
 
Notice of the City Council Public Hearing was published in the Waterloo-Cedar Falls Courier on 
April 7, 2023. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of RZ22-004, a request to rezone 
approximately 14.43 acre portion of the Jim Sands Construction LLC property from A-1 
Agricultural District to R-2 Residence District.   
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
3/8/23 
Introduction 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a rezoning from A-1 to R-2 
for 14.43 acres of land west of Cypress Avenue and north of Tomahawk Lane. Chair 
Lynch introduced the item and Ms. Pezley provided background information. She 
explained the rezoning would allow the development of residential lots of similar size 
to the surrounding lots. The property owner proposes to rezone the portion of the 
land that is known to be serviced for sewer at this time. She explained the criteria 
staff looks at when considering rezonings and noted that the R-2 zoning is 
appropriate according to the Comprehensive and Future Land Use Plans. She 
discussed the current access to public services and adequate street network. Staff 
recommends gathering comments from the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
the public, and to set a public hearing for the next Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting on March 22, 2023.  

56

Item 7.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public 
Hearing 
3/22/23 
 
 
 

Dan Arends, VJ Engineering, (3714 Center Street), explained that they are currently 
working with staff on a final design of a subdivision for the property. 

Scott, Bonorden, 1021 Rocklyn Street, stated concerns with stormwater management 
and wants to ensure that it is designed correctly.  

John Metcalf, 3421 Cypress, also stated concerns with stormwater management and 
spoke to current issues they have in the area.  

Matthew Tolan, Civil Engineer II, discussed options for stormwater management that 
engineering has been working on with the petitioner, which will be addressed with the 
subdivision plat.  

Ms. Pezley noted an email that was received after the packet was published for the 
Commission to review, which was handed out at the meeting.  

Mr. Larson made a motion to set a public hearing for the next meeting. Ms. Crisman 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Larson, Leeper and Lynch), and 0 nays. 

 
Tom Herzmann, 1122 West 10th Street, spoke as representative of the buyer of the 
property under contract for 1317 Tomahawk Lane. He noted concerns with the 
stormwater management plan, size, and density of the property. He also asked about 
the plan for curbs and gutters on the streets. Ms. Pezley stated that the existing 
streets will not change and the streets that would be proposed in the subdivision will 
be reviewed in the preliminary plat process. Stormwater requirements would also be 
reviewed at that time. 

Jon Metcalf, 3421 Cypress, noted concerns with the water and the potential phasing 
of the project.  

Mr. Leeper clarified that the current vote won’t be about the water, just the zoning, 
but the Commission has heard the concerns about the water and will ensure that 
those concerns will be addressed at the next stage. 

Larsen made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Larson, 
Leeper, Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 

 

 
 
 

57

Item 7.



Lone Tree Rd Trail

Maple St

Cadam Ct

Rosewood Dr

Westview St

Rocklyn St

Joy St

Hia
wa

tha
 Rd

Cy
pre

ss 
Av

e

Po
cah

on
tas

 Rd

Tomahawk Ln

Minnehaha Ln

W Lone Tree Rd

A-1A-1

R-2

A-1

R-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
March 8, 2023

Rezoning from A-1 to R-1
N of Black Hawk Park Add.
(RZ22-004)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

58

Item 7.



59

Item 7.



60

Item 7.



61

Item 7.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Michelle Pezley, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3029 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 14.34 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, 

REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE A-1, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND ADDING 

IT TO THE R-2, RESIDENCE DISTRICT  

 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to rezone approximately 14.34 acres of property from A-1 Agricultural Zoning 

District and placed in the R-2 Residence Zoning District more specifically described below; and  

 

WHEREAS, said R-2 Residence Zoning District allows for residential development that 

meets the principles of the Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and 

find that said rezoning is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and public 

services are available to support development according to the R-2 Residence Zoning District; 

and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of said 

rezoning; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best interests of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said rezoning; and  

 

WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is 

incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance by reference; and 

 
 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the property legally described below, be and the same, is hereby removed 

from the A-1 Agricultural District and added to the R-2 Residence District:  
 

 

62

Item 7.



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

The South 571 feet of the North 1,830 feet of the West 66 and 2/3 acres of the East 

Three-Quarters of the Northeast Quarter of Section 35, Township 90 North, Range 14 

West of the 5th P.M., Black Hawk County, Iowa. Subject to easements, restrictions, 

covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record. 
 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended to show 

the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-2 Residence District and the 

amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

INTRODUCED:     April 17, 2023    

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   April 17, 2023    

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

63

Item 7.



  
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

April 17, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 5:45 p.m. on April 17, 2023, with the following 
Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon Harding, Daryl 
Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members from all City Departments and members 
of the community attended in person.   
 
Committee of the Whole: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Committee of the Whole 
Agenda, Review of Council Salary and introduced Controller/City Treasurer, Lisa Roeding. Ms. Roeding 
stated that City Council members and mayors are considered employees of the City established by 
ordinance as required by Iowa Code Section 372.13(8). The Cedar Falls' Code of Ordinance (Sec 2-47) 
states each councilmember of the City shall receive an annual salary of $4,098.60 and after January 1, 2000, 
an annual salary adjustment equal to the latest calendar year annual federal consumer price index (CPI) rate 
awarded at the start of each fiscal year. Ms. Roeding gave an overview of the council salary rate history from 
2000-2023, percentage of rate change from 2000-2023, and salary survey results that included 24 responses 
from cities with an average annual salary of $9,372.60 with the City of Cedar Falls currently receiving 
$6,982.32. Ms. Roeding explained council shall not adopt an ordinance changing the compensation of the 
mayor, council members, or other elected officers during the months of November and December in the year 
of a regular city election and a change in compensation of council members becomes effective for all council 
members at the beginning of the term of the council members elected at the election next following the 
change in compensation per Iowa Code Section 372.13(8). Councilmembers discussed how often cities 
surveyed had council meetings, details of top 25 cities, Davenport, and the Cedar Falls salary. It was 
motioned by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to have staff draft Section 2-47 of the Cedar Falls Code of 
Ordinance to state that each councilmember of the city shall receive an annual salary of $12,000 and after 
January 2024 and annual salary adjustment equal to the latest calendar year annual federal consumer price 
index rate awarded at the start of each fiscal year. Staff were given direction to clarify the language as 
needed. The motion was put to vote. Aye: Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield and Schultz; Nay: deBuhr and 
Sires. Motion passed.  
 
Community Development Committee: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Community Development 
Committee Agenda, Downtown Public Restroom Study and introduced Community Development Director, 
Stephanie Houk Sheetz. Director Houk Sheetz explained the background behind the public restroom 
discussion and provided a map of the current restrooms available. Director Houk Sheetz discussed private 
restroom requirements, accessibility requirements, potential change to specific locations, installing a 
permanent standalone facility, restroom in future parking ramp, temporary restrooms, or a public-private 
partnership. Potential restroom locations were discussed along with vandalism, cleaning, and maintenance 
of restrooms. Councilmembers discussed staff pay rates for vandalism, cleaning, and maintenance of 
restrooms, directional signs to restrooms, pay restrooms, push buttons at Library, QR code for restroom 
locations, TIF funds for downtown restrooms. Chair Harding called for public comment. Rosemary Beach, 
5018 Sage Road, spoke about the availability of restrooms in the Main Street area, vandalism, and 
accessibility in restrooms. It was motioned by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to have staff install push 
button openers on the first floor of the library restrooms and incorporate QR code for restroom locations. The 
motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, Dunn, Harding, Kruse, Ganfield, Schultz, and Sires. Motion passed.  
 
Community Development Committee: 
Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the second item on the Community Development 
Committee Agenda, Iowa Workforce Housing Tax Credit and introduced Community Development Director, 
Stephanie Houk Sheetz. Director Houk Sheetz gave an overview of the Iowa Workforce Housing Tax Credit 
Program, program highlights, eligible project sites, requirement/financial highlights, most recent Cedar Falls 
applications and reviewed the 2023 potential applications. Councilmember discussed an interest in reviewing 
the proposals, to discuss potential local match/resolution of support from the city. City Administrator Gaines 
explained local match from the city could be expended from the Economic Development budget. A majority 
of the Councilmembers expressed interest in reviewing the projects.    
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

64

Item 8.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: April 21, 2023 

 SUBJECT: LGBTQIA+ Pride Month Proclamation Request for June 2023 

 REF: (a) CFD 1127.22: Official City Proclamations 

 

1. In late March, I received an LGBTQIA+ Pride Month proclamation request (Enclosure 1) 

and proclamation text (Enclosure 2) from the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission.  

This is the first year that I am aware of, that the City of Cedar Falls has been asked to 

proclaim a PRIDE Month, though the City of Waterloo has done it for several years now. 

2. As a Christian, I believe that every person is created in the image of God, and deserves 

love, respect, and dignity.  However, my understanding of the New Testament leads me 

to believe that God intended marriage to be between one man and one woman; 

promotion or advocacy of any sexual activity outside those bounds runs counter to the 

tenets of the Christian faith (particularly as stated in Romans 1:21-27). For this reason, I 

do not support or recommend the issuance of this proclamation. 

3. That said, I also understand that not everyone shares my beliefs, and that many in our 

community may disagree with me. This includes the Cedar Falls Human Rights 

Commission (CFHRC), which last year adopted an events calendar that includes “LGBTQ 

Pride Month”.  

4. I believe city government should always provide a fair hearing to the recommendations 

of its own city boards and commissions. The proclamation request complies with the 

requirements of reference (a), including timely submission, and so is valid for City 

Council consideration at the May 1, 2023 City Council meeting.    

5. While city proclamations have no weight in law, they do express the public sentiment as 

determined by the Council and/or Mayor, and are a time-honored method of 

celebrating, advocating, and bringing community awareness to various causes. I 

certainly understand, given recent state-level legislation nationwide affecting the 

LGBTQIA+ community, that the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission would wish to 

65

Item 9.



 

 

show solidarity and advocacy for residents identifying as LGBTQIA+, and would request 

that the Cedar Falls City Council do the same.  

6. I ask that we all, as elected officials, please set the tone for civility and treat everyone 

impacted by this important social issue with dignity and respect.  We must engage 

others with empathy and compassion in order to resist stereotyping the ‘other side’.  In 

the end, we are all still neighbors, and we are all still CEDAR FALLS.  

7. I want to assure those council members in support of this proclamation that my stance 

is not made with animosity or a desire to exclude anyone; as Mayor, I am committed to 

serving and supporting all residents, regardless of their backgrounds or beliefs.  Again, 

all individuals deserve to be treated with dignity and respect. 

8. If the proclamation were approved by the City Council, my Christian beliefs would 

require that I not sign or otherwise take part in this proclamation. I would remove 

language regarding the mayor from an approved proclamation, and I would request 

that a council member sign the approved proclamation on behalf of the City Council.  

9. Please contact me with any questions or concerns you may have arising from this 

decision, which I am making only after much dialogue, consideration, and prayer.  I 

greatly appreciate your thoughtful attention to this challenging civic issue. 

Xc:   City Administrator 

 Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission 

 Cedar Falls City Attorney 

 

Encl: (1) Pride Month Proclamation Request dated March 24, 2023 

 (2) Pride Month Proclamation Text 

 

### 

  

66

Item 9.



 

 

___________________________________________________________ 
 
From: Chelsie Luhring 
Sent: Friday, March 24, 2023 8:35 AM 
To: Proclamations <proclamations@cedarfalls.com> 
Cc: Rob Green <Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com> 
Subject: Pride Month Proclamation - June 2023 
  
Good morning, 
Attached you will find a proclamation for Pride Month (June 2023). I’m submitting on behalf of the 
Human Rights Commission. 
  

A.    Information required for an official city proclamation request are: 
1.    Submitter Name (plus title / organizational affiliation as 

appropriate). Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission 
2.    Submitter Mailing Address and E-mail Address. Attn: CFHRC 220 

Clay St. Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
3.    Date of Need for Signed Proclamation. June 2023 
4.    Desired Presentation Venue (Mayor’s Office, City Studio, Site 

Visit, other). There is an LGBT-related event in the works, so 
during a council meeting as it will be tied to an event or in the 
Mayor’s office 

5.    Draft Proclamation Text (including 3-6 Whereas Clauses and a 
Therefore Clause). Attached 

Please let me know if there’s any other info you’re needing from me. 
  
Thank you! 
  

Chelsie Luhring, M.A. 

(She, her, hers) 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Specialist 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay St. 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Chelsie.Luhring@cedarfalls.com 
Office: (319) 268-5120 

 

 

 

  

ENCLOSURE 1 

67

Item 9.

mailto:proclamations@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Chelsie.Luhring@cedarfalls.com


 

 

PROCLAMATION OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IA DECLARING  

JUNE 2023, AS PRIDE MONTH  

  
PROCLAMATION:  

WHEREAS, June 2023 marks the 54th annual celebration throughout the United States of 

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer, Intersex, Asexual and all others (LGBTQIA+) 

PRIDE Month; and,  

WHEREAS, the month of June was chosen to commemorate the dedication and bravery of those 

who led the 1969 uprising at the Stonewall Tavern in Greenwich Village, which sparked the 

modern LGTBQIA+ liberation movement; and,   

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls believes in working together with all members of our 

community to facilitate open relationships, providing safety, dignity and a welcoming 

environment for our residents and visitors; and,  

WHEREAS, all human beings are born free and equal in dignity and rights. LGBTQIA+ 

individuals have had immeasurable impact to the cultural, civic, and economic successes of our 

community; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls is committed to supporting visibility, dignity and equality 

for LGBTQIA+ people in our diverse community; and  

WHEREAS, while society at large increasingly supports LGBTQIA+ equality, it is essential to 

acknowledge that the need for education and awareness remains vital to end discrimination and 

prejudice; and  

WHEREAS, this nation was founded on the principle that every individual has infinite dignity 

and worth, and the City Council of Cedar Falls calls upon the people of this municipality to 

embrace this principle and work to eliminate prejudice everywhere it exists; and  

WHEREAS, celebrating Pride Month influences awareness and provides support and advocacy 

for the city’s LGBTQIA+ community, and is an opportunity to take action and engage in 

dialogue to strengthen alliances, build acceptance and advance equal rights.   

WHEREAS, the city of Cedar Falls joins the LGBTQIA+ Community in a celebration of 

diversity and unity and, remains committed to treating all people with fairness and respect.  

NOW, IN WITNESS THEREOF, I, _______________, on behalf of the City Council and the 

Human Rights Commission, do hereby proclaim the month of June, 2023 in Cedar Falls, Iowa as 

Pride Month.  

WITNESS MY HAND AND THE SEAL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS on this XXth day 

of June, 2023.  

_____________________________ 

City of Cedar Falls 

ENCLOSURE 2 

68

Item 9.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: April 24, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Re-Appointment to Cedar Falls Utilities Board of Trustees 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-448: Utilities Board of Trustees 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I hereby re-appoint Mr. Jeff Engel to the Cedar Falls 

Utilities Board of Trustees for a six-year term beginning on September 1, 2023 and ending 

on August 31, 2029.  

 

2. In considering re-appointment, I note that Mr. Engel’s attendance has been satisfactory, 

and he has been an active and informed member of the board. 

 

3. Please contact me with any additional questions you have about this re-appointment. 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  CFU General Manager 

   

  

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

69

Item 10.



70

Item 11.



71

Item 11.



72

Item 11.



73

Item 11.



74

Item 11.



75

Item 11.



76

Item 11.



77

Item 11.



78

Item 11.



79

Item 11.



80

Item 12.



81

Item 12.



82

Item 12.



83

Item 12.



84

Item 12.



85

Item 12.



86

Item 12.



87

Item 12.



88

Item 12.



89

Item 12.



90

Item 12.



91

Item 12.



92

Item 12.



93

Item 12.



94

Item 12.



95

Item 12.



96

Item 12.



97

Item 12.



98

Item 12.



99

Item 12.



100

Item 12.



101

Item 12.



102

Item 12.



103

Item 12.



104

Item 12.



105

Item 12.



106

Item 12.



107

Item 12.



108

Item 12.



109

Item 12.



110

Item 12.



111

Item 12.



112

Item 12.



113

Item 13.



114

Item 13.



115

Item 13.



116

Item 13.



117

Item 13.



118

Item 13.



119

Item 13.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  April 24, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) CVS/Pharmacy, 2302 West 1st Street, Class E retail alcohol – renewal. 

b) Cedar Basin Music Festival, Sturgis Park, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 5-
day permit. 

c) Live to 9, 200 Block of State Street and 100 Block of East 2nd Street including adjacent 
sidewalks, Special Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service – seven 5-day permits (June 2-6, 
June 9-13, July 6-10, July 13-17, July 27-31, August 10-14, and August 17-21). 

 

120

Item 14.



121

Item 16.



122

Item 17.



123

Item 17.



124

Item 17.



125

Item 17.



126

Item 17.



127

Item 17.



128

Item 17.



129

Item 17.



130

Item 17.



131

Item 17.



132

Item 17.



133

Item 17.



134

Item 17.



135

Item 17.



136

Item 17.



137

Item 18.



138

Item 18.



139

Item 18.



140

Item 18.



141

Item 18.



142

Item 18.



143

Item 18.



144

Item 18.



145

Item 18.



146

Item 18.



147

Item 18.



148

Item 18.



149

Item 18.



150

Item 18.



151

Item 18.



152

Item 18.



153

Item 18.



154

Item 18.



155

Item 18.



156

Item 18.



157

Item 18.



158

Item 18.



159

Item 18.



160

Item 18.



161

Item 18.



162

Item 18.



163

Item 18.



164

Item 18.



165

Item 18.



166

Item 18.



167

Item 19.



168

Item 19.



169

Item 19.



170

Item 19.



171

Item 19.



172

Item 19.



173

Item 19.



174

Item 19.



175

Item 19.



176

Item 19.



177

Item 19.



178

Item 19.



179

Item 19.



180

Item 19.



181

Item 19.



182

Item 19.



183

Item 19.



184

Item 19.



185

Item 19.



186

Item 19.



187

Item 19.



188

Item 19.



189

Item 19.



190

Item 19.



191

Item 19.



192

Item 19.



193

Item 19.



194

Item 19.



195

Item 20.



196

Item 20.



197

Item 20.



198

Item 20.



199

Item 20.



200

Item 20.



201

Item 20.



202

Item 20.



203

Item 20.



204

Item 20.



205

Item 20.



206

Item 20.



207

Item 20.



208

Item 20.



209

Item 20.



210

Item 20.



211

Item 20.



212

Item 20.



213

Item 20.



214

Item 20.



215

Item 20.



216

Item 20.



217

Item 20.



218

Item 21.



219

Item 21.



220

Item 21.



221

Item 21.



222

Item 21.



223

Item 21.



224

Item 21.



225

Item 21.



226

Item 21.



227

Item 21.



228

Item 21.



229

Item 21.



230

Item 21.



231

Item 21.



232

Item 21.



233

Item 21.



234

Item 21.



235

Item 21.



236

Item 21.



237

Item 21.



238

Item 21.



239

Item 21.



240

Item 21.



241

Item 21.



242

Item 21.



243

Item 21.



244

Item 21.



245

Item 21.



246

Item 21.



247

Item 21.



248

Item 22.



249

Item 22.



250

Item 22.



251

Item 22.



252

Item 22.



253

Item 22.



254

Item 22.



255

Item 22.



256

Item 22.



257

Item 22.



258

Item 22.



259

Item 22.



260

Item 22.



261

Item 22.



262

Item 22.



263

Item 22.



264

Item 22.



265

Item 22.



266

Item 22.



267

Item 22.



268

Item 22.



269

Item 22.



270

Item 22.



271

Item 22.



272

Item 22.



273

Item 22.



274

Item 22.



275

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

RECREATION CENTER 
110 E 13TH STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PH: 319-273-8636 
FAX: 319-273-8656 

 M E M O R A N D U M 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Christopher F. Schoentag, Aquatic Supervisor   

 DATE: April 5, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Concession Supplier for the Falls Aquatic Center 

 

The Recreation Division distributed an RFQ on February 23, 2023 to Myers Cox, Martin 

Brothers, and Performance Food Service for a concession stand supplier at The Falls 

Aquatic Center. Quotes were received Tuesday, March 14, 2023 with Myers Cox being 

the only company to submit a quote.  Administrative Policy 11.02.7 outlines that staff 

must ensure a fair and reasonable price for the project and after that submit a contract 

for Council approval. 

 

I feel that their prices are fair and recommend retaining their services.  The RFQ 
indicated an initial three-year contract with the option of an additional 2 years if both 
parties are satisfied with service.   
 
At this time, I recommend approving a contract with Myers Cox as the major supplier of 
concession goods for The Falls Aquatic Center.  Attached is the contract for your 
approval.  
 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Thank you. 

 

 

 

 

 

c Mike Soppe, Recreation and Fitness Center Manager 

 Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Director of Community Development 

276

Item 23.



1 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Myers Cox, Food Distribution 

 

This Agreement is by and between Myers Cox (“Contractor”) and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (“City”), and is to be 

effective on the date last signed by the Contractor or the City below. 

1.0.       Contractor’s Services 

1.1.       Contractor’s services shall consist only of the those services and/or products provided or supplied by 

Contractor as defined in this Agreement and as listed on Exhibit “A” attached.  (“Services” or “Scope of Services”) 

1.2.       Contractor shall not commence or perform any work outside the Scope of Services unless and until 

authorized in writing by the City.  No changes to the Scope of Services shall be valid unless agreed to by both the 

Contractor and the City in writing.  Any work performed or expenses incurred by the Contractor shall be conclusively 

presumed to be part of the Scope of Services unless a written change order covering such work, and the cost of such 

work, has been agreed to in advance.  If Exhibit “A” includes provisions for contingent services, such services shall 

not be performed until written authorization is given by the City.  

1.3.       Contractor shall assign qualified and experienced personnel to perform the Services, and Contractor hereby 

warrants to the City that Contractor has sufficient experience and financial resources to complete the Services 

required by this Agreement.  Where the Scope of Services identifies particular personnel who shall perform the 

Services, such personnel shall remain assigned to provide the Services throughout the term of this Agreement, 

unless otherwise approved in writing by the City.  In the event that such particular personnel must be replaced, 

Contractor agrees to replace such particular personnel with persons of equivalent or better qualifications, as 

approved by the City. 

1.4.       Contractor shall perform the Services in a timely manner and in accordance with any schedule set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  The Contractor and the City agree that time is of the essence with respect to Contractor’s performance 

under this Agreement.         

1.5.       Contractor warrants that its fulfillment of this Agreement will not infringe on or misappropriate the rights of any 

third party, and that the Contractor has the complete right and full authority to convey ownership of the Services to 

the City.  Contractor shall obtain all required governmental and third-party licenses, approvals and permits for the 

provision of Services, at Contractor’s cost. 

1.6.       The person signing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor represents and warrants that the person has 

full and sufficient authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor. 

2.0.       Compensation 

2.1.       All bids and prices shall be shown in U.S. Dollars.  All prices must remain firm for the duration of this 

Agreement. 

2.2.       After inspection (if applicable) and acceptance by the City of Services, City shall pay Contractor in 

accordance with the payment terms set forth in Exhibit “B”.  The maximum amount of all payments for Services shall 

be the amount set forth in Exhibit “B”, unless additional Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, in which 

case the maximum amount of all payments shall be adjusted accordingly.   

2.3.       Following acceptance of Services by the City, payment shall be made to the Contractor within thirty (30) days 

of receipt of a proper invoice.  The invoice shall include, at a minimum. The name and address of the Contractor, the 

invoice number, the date services were performed or goods were shipped, a general description of the services or 

277

Item 23.



2 
 

goods, total amount to be paid, any discounts or credits, and the net amount to be paid.  The invoice shall be mailed 

or emailed to the authorized representative of the City listed below, at the address listed below. 

2.4.       Expenses shall not be reimbursed to the Contractor unless specifically described in Exhibit “B”. 

2.5.       If services in addition to the Scope of Services are agreed upon as set forth in Section 1.2, Contractor must 

provide a separate invoice for such additional services before payment will be made. 

2.6.       If the City fails to make any payment when due to the Contractor, the Contractor may charge the City interest 

on the unpaid balance at the rate of 5% per annum until paid.  In addition, Contractor may, after giving seven (7) days 

written notice to the City, suspend services under this Agreement until such unpaid balance is paid in full. 

2.7.       Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the City may withhold payment to Contractor for 

faulty Services, or if the City is advised of liens or other claims against any Services, including products. 

3.0.       Taxes. 

3.1.       The City is exempt from all federal, State of Iowa, and other states’ taxes on the purchase of products and 

services used by the City within the State of Iowa.  The City shall provide tax exemption certification as required.   

3.2.       Any charges for taxes from which the City is exempt will be deducted from invoices before payment is made.  

4.0.       Ownership and Use of Documents 

4.1.       All Services to be provided under this Agreement, and any invention, improvement, discovery, or innovation 

(whether or not patentable) made, conceived or actually reduced to practice by Contractor in the performance of the 

Scope of Services in this Agreement will be owned exclusively by the City, including all proprietary and intellectual 

property rights.  To the extent not automatically vested in the City, Contractor hereby assigns to the City all right, title 

and interest in and to the Services, including, without limitation, copyright, patent and trade secret rights.  Upon the 

City’s request, Contractor shall execute any additional documents necessary for the City to perfect such ownership 

rights.   

4.2.       Notwithstanding Section 4.1, Contractor retains ownership of its pre-existing and proprietary materials and 

other intellectual property that may be incorporated into the Services. 

4.3.       Copies of City furnished data that may be relied upon by Contractor are limited to the printed copies (also 

known as hard copies) that are delivered to the Contractor.  Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or 

of other formats that are furnished by the City to the Contractor are only for the convenience of the Contractor.  Any 

conclusion or information obtained or derived from such electronic files will be at the Contractor’s sole risk. 

4.4.       During the term of this Agreement and following completion or termination of the Agreement, the Contractor 

and any authorized Subcontractors shall maintain all accounting records and other documentation generated in 

providing Services under this Agreement.  The City or its designee shall be allowed to have access to such 

information for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying during normal business hours for a period of five (5) 

years after the final payment by the City, termination of this Agreement, or resolution of all matters under this 

Agreement, whichever date is latest.  No additional compensation shall be paid to Contractor for such retention or 

inspection by the City or designee.  

5.0.       Term and Termination. 

5.1.       The term of this Agreement shall commence on the effective date and end on October 1, 2025 unless earlier 

terminated under the terms of this Agreement. 

5.2        The City may terminate this Agreement at any time for its convenience by giving written notice to the 

Contractor of such termination and specifying the effective date of the termination, at least thirty (30) calendar days 

before the effective date of termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished Services, reports and materials 

278

Item 23.



3 
 

prepared or furnished by the Contractor shall, at the option of the City, become the City’s property.  If the Agreement 

is terminated by the City as provided herein, the Contractor shall be paid for all Services which have been authorized, 

approved and provided up to the effective date of termination.  The City will not be subject to any termination fees 

from the Contractor. 

5.3.       Either party may terminate this Agreement upon seven (7) calendar days written notice in the event that the 

other party fails to substantially perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party 

initiating the termination. 

6.0.       Warranties. 

6.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that Services shall be performed in a manner consistent with the 

standard of care of other professional service providers in a similar industry and application.   

6.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that products delivered as part of the Scope of Services, including each 

component, shall be free of defects and shall conform to the quality standards of the applicable industry and shall 

meet in all respects the requirements of the Scope of Services.  If any defect or sign of deterioration is identified by 

the City within one year after delivery which is not due to the acts or omissions of the City, Contractor shall, within 15 

days after notification by the City, at Contractor’s expense, repair, adjust or replace such items to the complete 

satisfaction of the City.  

6.3.       Contractor shall be responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of all 

Services under this Agreement.  Contractor shall promptly and without charge, provide all corrective work necessary 

as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or omissions with respect to the quality and accuracy of Contractor’s Services. 

6.4.       Contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages to property or persons as a result of Contractor’s 

acts, errors or omissions in performing the Services under this Agreement, and for any losses or costs to repair or 

remedy any Services undertaken by the City as a result of any such acts, errors or omissions. 

6.5.       Contractor’s obligations shall exist without regard to, and shall not be construed to be waived by, the 

availability or unavailability of any insurance, either by the City or by the Contractor.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be construed as a limitation on the City’s right to seek recovery of damages it suffers as a result of 

Contractor’s fault or breach. 

7.0.       Warranties – Intellectual Property.   

7.1.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services produced or provided to the City do not infringe upon 

any copyright, trademark, trade name, trade dress patent, statutory, common law or any other right of any person or 

entity. 

7.2.       Contractor represents and warrants that the Services, and the City’s use of the same, and the exercise by the 

City of the rights granted by this Agreement, shall not infringe upon any other work or violate the rights of publicity or 

privacy of, or constitute a libel or slander against, any person or entity. 

7.3.       Contractor represents and warrants that it is the owner of or otherwise has the right to use and distribute the 

Services contemplated by this Agreement. 

8.0.       Disputes. 

8.1.       Should any dispute arise with respect to this Agreement, the parties agree to act immediately to resolve such 

dispute.  Time is of the essence in the resolution of disputes. 

8.2.       Contractor agrees that, the existence of a dispute notwithstanding, it will continue without delay to carry out 

all of its responsibilities under this Agreement that are not affected by the dispute and the City shall continue to make 

payment for all Services that are performed in conformance with this Agreement.  Should the Contractor fail to 

279

Item 23.



4 
 

continue to perform its responsibilities regarding all non-disputed Services, without delay, any additional costs 

incurred by the City or the Contractor as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the Contractor. 

8.3.       Should any dispute between the parties remain unresolved, the parties mutually agree to engage in 

mediation prior to the filing of suit by either party.  The cost of mediation shall be divided equally between the parties 

except that each party shall be responsible for that party’s own expenses and attorney fees associated with 

mediation.  The City shall not engage in arbitration of any dispute. 

9.0.       Indemnification and Hold Harmless. 

9.1.       To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor (for purposes of this Section 9.0, includes employees, 

subcontractors, agents and others working on behalf of Contractor under this Agreement) agrees to defend (for all 

non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City (for purposes of this Section 9.0 includes elected and 

appointed officials, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City) against any and all claims, demands, suits 

or loss, including any and all outlay and expense connected therewith, and for damages, which may be asserted, 

claimed or recovered against or from the City, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason of personal 

injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 

associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City under this Agreement, to the extent 

caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the Contractor.  

9.2.       Contractor’s duty of indemnification and to hold harmless includes, but is not limited to, Contractor’s breach 

or alleged breach of the warranties found in Sections 6.0 and 7.0 above, and shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement.  Such duty also includes damage, loss or injury to the City or City property. 

9.3.       Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for loss, expense, damages or injuries which may result to 

the Contractor by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by Contractor under this 

Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of the errors, omissions, negligent or intentional acts of the 

Contractor. 

9.4.       It is specifically agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to create in the public or any 

member of the public third party beneficiary status or to authorize anyone not a party to this Agreement to maintain a 

suit for personal injuries or property damage.        

10.0.       Insurance. 

Contractor shall at all times during the performance of this Agreement maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit “C” 

unless this insurance requirement is waived by the City in this Section. 

Insurance requirement waived:  ____No waivers._______________________________________ (Signature and 

title of authorized City employee or officer) 

The City may at any time during the term of this Agreement require proof of such insurance. 

11.0.       Compliance with Laws and Regulations. 

11.1.       Contractor certifies that in performing this Agreement it will comply with all applicable provisions of federal, 

state and local laws, ordinances, rules, licenses and regulations and shall make reasonable efforts to ensure that its 

employees, agents, subcontractors and others working on behalf of the Contractor under this Agreement do the 

same. 

11.2.       Contractor is responsible for determining which products are considered to be hazardous chemicals under 

applicable standards and to provide the most current Safety Data Sheet (“SDS”) with the initial shipment of such 

chemicals.  Failure by Contractor to do so may be considered by the City to be delivery of a defective product and its 

delivery may be refused.  It is also the Contractor’s responsibility to provide to the City any updated or revised SDS 

as it becomes available for any such hazardous chemicals sold and delivered to the City. 

280

Item 23.



5 
 

12.0.       Independent Contractor. 

Both parties shall act in their individual capacities in the performance of this Agreement and not as agents, 

employees, partners, joint ventures or associates of one another.  The employees or agents of one party shall not be 

deemed or construed to be the employees or agents of the other for any purpose whatsoever. 

13.0.       Non-Collusion. 

13.1.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has employed any person to solicit or 

procure this Agreement, nor will the Contractor make any payment or agreement for payment of any compensation in 

connection with the solicitation or procurement of this Agreement. 

13.2.       Contractor agrees that there is no agreement, arrangement or understanding expressed or implied, 

contemplating any division of compensation for Services provided under this Agreement, or in the participation in 

such Services, directly or indirectly, by any person or entity, except as provided in this Agreement.  

13.3.       Neither the Contractor, nor anyone acting on behalf of Contractor, has either directly or indirectly entered 

into any agreement, arrangement or understanding to collude or otherwise take any action in restraint of free 

competitive procurement in connection with this Agreement. 

14.0.       Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity. 

14.1.       Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, sex, 

color, creed, national origin, marital or familial status, religion, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity, 

genetic information or veteran status, or any other classification protected by federal, state, or local law, except where 

age or sex is an essential bona fide occupational requirement, or where disability is a bona fide occupational 

disqualification.   

14.2.       Contractor shall inform all subcontractors and agents performing under this Agreement of this 

nondiscrimination and equal opportunity requirement and shall take reasonable steps to ensure their compliance with 

the same. 

15.0.       No Conflict of Interest, 

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants that no relationship exists or will exist during the term of this 

Agreement that is a conflict of interest under Iowa law.  No employee, officer or agent of the Contractor shall 

participate in the procurement or performance of this Agreement if a conflict of interest exists as to such person.  

Should a conflict of interest arise during the term of this Agreement for Contractor or any employee, officer or agent of 

Contractor, Contractor shall immediately notify the City, in which case this Agreement may be terminated and any 

excess costs incurred by the City due to such termination shall be paid by Contractor or deducted from any sums yet 

due to Contractor. 

16.0.       Force Majeure. 

16.1.       Force majeure shall be any of the following events:  acts of God or the public enemy; compliance with any 

order, rule, regulation, decree, or request of any governmental authority or agency or person purporting to act as 

such; acts of war, public disorder, rebellion, terrorism, or sabotage; floods, hurricanes, or other storms; strikes or 

labor disputes; or any other cause, whether or not of the class or kind specifically named or referred to in this 

Agreement which is not within the reasonable control of the party affected.  A delay in or failure of performance by 

either party shall not constitute a default in performance nor be the basis for, or give rise to, any claim for damages, if 

and to the extent such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

16.2.       The party who is prevented from performing by force majeure shall be obligated, within a period not to 

exceed fourteen (14) calendar days after the occurrence or detection of any such event, to provide notice to the other 

party setting forth in reasonable detail the nature thereof and the anticipated extent of the delay, and shall remedy 

such cause as soon as reasonably possible, as mutually agreed between the parties. 

281

Item 23.



6 
 

16.3.       If a remedy to an event of force majeure cannot be agreed upon within a reasonable amount of time, this 

Agreement may be terminated by either party. 

17.0.       Assignment. 

No rights under this Agreement may be assigned or transferred by Contractor without the prior written consent of the 

City.  The benefits of this Agreement may inure to Contractor’s assigns, transferees, or successors in interest if 

approved by the City in writing in advance, and if such assignee, transferees or successors agree in writing to be 

bound by the terms of this Agreement. 

18.0.       Governing Law.   

18.1.       This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Iowa, regardless of choice of law principles. 

18.2.       Venue for any dispute under this Agreement shall be the District Court in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa.        

19.0.       Discrepancy.   

In the event that there are any discrepancies or differences between any terms or conditions of the Contractor’s bid or 

quote and this Agreement, this Agreement shall prevail, even if the Contractor’s bid or quote is incorporated into this 

Agreement. 

20.0       Public Record. 

20.1.      This Agreement as well as Contractor’s bid or quote and all documents submitted with any such bid or quote 

shall become public documents subject to Iowa Code Chapter 22, the Iowa Open Records Law.  By submitting the 

bid or quote or any document to the City in connection with such bid or quote, the submitting party recognizes this 

and waives any claim against the City, its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and agents working on 

behalf of the City, relating to the release of any bid or document submitted. 

20.2.       Each submitting party shall hold the City and its elected and appointed officers, and its employees, and 

agents working on behalf of the City, harmless from any claims arising from the release of any document or 

information made available to the City related to or arising from the bidding or quoting process. 

20.3.       Notwithstanding Sections 20.1 and 20.2, protection from disclosure may apply to those elements of any 

submittal that may be a trade secret, or confidential or proprietary information.  Should the submitting party wish to 

designate submittals as such, they must be clearly and prominently marked.  The City shall make no determination as 

to whether or not such documents are protected from disclosure under Iowa Code Chapter 22.  Rather, the City shall 

endeavor to notify the submitter of any request for such information and the submitter shall be solely responsible for 

asserting exemption from disclosure by obtaining a court order.  As long as the City makes a good faith effort to notify 

the submitter of a request for such information, the City and the City’s elected and appointed officers, the City’s 

employees, and agents working on behalf of the City, shall not be liable for any damages resulting from such 

disclosure, whether such disclosure is deemed required by law, by an order of court or administrative agency, or 

occurs through inadvertence, mistake, or negligence.  

21.0.       Debarment. 

21.1.       Contractor hereby certifies, pursuant to 48 CFR Part 9, that neither it nor its principals are presently 

debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this 

Agreement by any federal agency. 

21.2.       Contractor further certifies that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in any contracts with the City or with the State of Iowa. 

 

282

Item 23.



7 
 

22.0        Confidentiality of Shared Information. 

No information shared between Contractor and the City in the performance of this Agreement shall be deemed 

confidential unless clearly designated as such in writing by the party seeking confidentiality at the time of sharing.  If 

designated as confidential the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information except as necessary 

for performance under this Agreement, unless or until written authorization for disclosure is given by the designating 

party, or as required by law, or by an order of a court or administrative agency.  In the event of a dispute over the 

confidentiality of shared information, the parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of the designated information 

until the issue of confidentiality is resolved.  The duty to maintain the confidentiality of such information shall survive 

the termination of this Agreement. 

23.0.       Entire Agreement. 

23.1.       This Agreement, and Exhibits, which are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, contains the 

entire agreement and understanding by and between the parties with respect to the subject matter, and no 

representations, promises, agreements, or understandings, written or verbal, not contained in this Agreement, shall 

be of any force or effect. 

23.2.       No change, modification or waiver of this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless the same is in writing 

and signed by the party against whom such change, modification or waiver is sought to be enforced. 

24.0.       Additional Terms. 

___________None.____________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.0.       Notices. 

Any notice required to be given under this Agreement and any authorization required to be provided shall be given or 

provided to: 

City:                                                                                     Contractor: 

Name: Chris Schoentag Name: Zack Kass 

Title: Recreation Supervisor                                         Title: Sales Manager 

Address: 110 E 13th St. Address: 8797 Kapp Dr. 

             Cedar Falls, IA  50613         Peosta, IA  52068 

Telephone: (319) 268-5526  Telephone: (563) 543-8103 

Email: Chris.Schoentag@cedarfalls.com   Email: zkass@myerscox.com  

 

 

 

 

283

Item 23.



8 
 

In Witness Whereof, the City and the Contractor have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the last date listed 

below. 

 

CONTRACTOR: Myers Cox 

By: __________________________________________ 
Zack Kass 

Its: _Sales Manager___________________________                    Date: ___________________ 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

By: __________________________________ 

        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

Attest: ________________________________                                      Date: _____________________ 

             Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

                                 

    

  

284

Item 23.



9 
 

Exhibit A 

Services 
 
 

Contractor will provide an easy and accurate electronic platform for the City to use in product ordering. 

Contractor will deliver concessions to the Falls Aquatic Center once per week.  The City will submit an order by 

Wednesday of every week, of products needed following the list of products identified in Exhibit B.  Order delivery will 

be on Thursday, with delivery hours being between 8 am-noon.   

Contractor will accept return of unopened non-perishable and perishable stock except for frozen items. 

285

Item 23.



Exhibit B (Continued) 

Payment Terms 

10 
 

Exhibit B 

Payment Terms 
 

Contractor will provide City invoices within one week of delivery.   

Contractor’s product listing and pricing are listed as follows: 

 

Brand Name Pack Size Provider Brand 
Unit 
Price 

Institutional Food 

Farmland Gold Medal Hotdogs 5-1# (50) Farmland 43.48 

Bosco Cheese Sticks Indv.Wrapped 24 count  23.11 

Flavacol Salt 35 oz Flavacol 2.74 

Snappy Yellow Popcorn 4/12.5# Snappy 24.03 

Nacho Tortilla Chips 28/2.5 oz Old Dutch 12.89 

Gehls Sharp Cheddar Cheese 4/12.5 # Gehls 4/14 oz 73.73 

Heinz Marinara Sauce 60/2 oz 100 / 1 oz 27.53 

Bun, Hotdog Gonnella 8/8 pack Gonnella 23.47 

Snappy Syrup – Cherry 1 gallon It comes 4 / 14 gal 1 case 12.50 

Snappy Syrup – Tiger Blood 1 gallon 4 / 1 gal 12.50 

Snappy Syrup – Blue Rasberry 1 gallon 4 / 1 gal 13.90 

Coconut Oil - Popcorn 50# pail  138.39 

Jamwich PB&J – Wheat 72 count Uncrustable 54.90 

Blue Bunny Van. Ice Cream Sand. 2/24 count  29.35 

Snacks 

Tootsie Roll 280 count Tootsie 16.69 

Reeses Cup 105 count Hershey 10.63 

Mike & Ike 25/.25 Just Born 4.42 

Flavor Ice Freeze Pops-Assorted 45/5.5 oz Flavor Ice 16.67 

Butterfinger Candy Bar 36 count Ferrors 35.01 

Skittles 36 count Mars 35.43 

Twix Caramel Candy Bar 36 count Mars 35.43 

M&M Peanut Butter 24 count Mars 23.62 

Sargento String Cheese 24/1oz Sargento 12.63 

Pepperidge Farm Cheddar Gold Fish 72/1.5 oz  31.64 

Teddy Graham Cinnamon Cookie 1 oz Supplier Problem Currently 31.47 

Cheetos Vending 104 
count 

Frito Lay 50.40 

Doritos Nacho Chips Vending 104 
count 

Frito Lay 50.40 

Planters Peanuts 24 count Planters 7.34 

Planters Trail Mix Tube 18/1.7 oz Planters 16.58 

Twizzlers Red Licorice Wrap 8/180 Hershey N/A 

Snickers Candy Bar 48 count Mars 47.23 

Retail Grocery 

Heinz Upside Down Ketchup Each/20 oz Food Club 1.79 

Food Club Upside Down Yellow Mustard Each/20 oz Food Club 1.43 

Janitorial 

Sure Fine Plain Bleach 4/Cs  14.86 

  

286

Item 23.



Exhibit B (Continued) 

Payment Terms 

11 
 

Brand Name Pack Size Provider Brand 
Unit 
Price 

Paper Products 

Food Service Poly Gloves – Large 100 count 1000 ct 7.94 

Spoons – White Plastic, Medium 1,000  12.89 

Nacho Cheese Trays 4/125  77.43 

2 oz Plastic Portion Cups 50/50  40.94 

12 oz Styrofoam Cups 40/25  67.06 

16 oz Styrofoam Cups 40/25  98.71 

Bag Paper #2 White 500  15.25 

Bag Paper #3 White 500  17.84 

8” Paper Hotdog Tray 12/250  72.91 

 

287

Item 23.



 

Exhibit C 

Certificate of Liability Insurance 

 

  

288

Item 23.



Exhibit C (Continued) 

Certificate of Liability Insurance 
 

13 
 

 

289

Item 23.



290

Item 23.



291

Item 23.



   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Craig R. Berte, Public Safety Director 

Date:  April 20, 2023 

Re: Sturgis Falls – Prohibited Animals 

Attached is a memo in reference to the Cedar Falls Animal Control Ordinance, Section 6-
70, Animals Prohibited: Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin Music Festival, the 
events for 2023 will be held Wednesday June 21st at 5:00 p.m. through Sunday, June 
25th at midnight 
 
The city ordinance does require the City Council to designate the dates in order for the 
ordinance to take effect each year. We are requesting that you make that designation 
for this year’s Sturgis Falls Celebration.  

 
 

292

Item 24.



                

 

                                                                                            

MEMORANDUM 
CEDAR FALLS POLICE DEPARTMENT 

REVISED:  11-01-2013 
 
 

        
             DATE: 4/21/23_ 

 
 
TO:  _Director Berte_ 
 
FROM:  _Captain Jeff Harrenstein_ 
 
SUBJECT:  _Animals Prohibited_  
 
 

In reference to the Cedar Falls Animal Control Ordinance, Section 6-70, Animals 
Prohibited: Sturgis Falls Celebration and Cedar Basin Music Festival, the events for 2023 
will be held Wednesday June 21st at 5:00 p.m. through Sunday, June 25th at midnight. 
 
Per the ordinance, animals should not be permitted in the following locations, on the dates 
and times listed above.  These locations would include parks, streets, sidewalks and 
parking lots. 
 
Gateway Park and Merriam’s Midway 
Overman Park 
Sturgis Park 
Policeman’s Park 
Franklin and Clay Streets from 1st to 4th Streets 
2nd and 3rd Streets from Washington to Franklin Streets 
100-blk E. 2nd Street  
100-400-blk State Street 
State Street Plaza 
Lincoln Street from 1st to McKinley Streets 
1st Street from Main to the East side of the Main Street Bridge 
Public Parking Area from Cedar City Creamery to Policeman’s Park 
Lincoln Street to the Railroad Tracks 
 
Animals should not be permitted on the streets / sidewalks or in the area of the 
parade/parade route on Saturday June 24th, between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and Noon. 
 

293

Item 24.



Streets impacted by this include: 
 
Clay Street from 8th to 11th Streets 
11th Street from Clay to Main Streets 
Washington Street from 11th to 5th Streets 
Main Street from 5th to 3rd Streets 
3rd Street from Main to Franklin Streets 
Franklin Street from 3rd to 5th Streets 
 
In addition, animals should not be permitted on the streets or in the area of the Arts ‘n 
Crafts fair from 6:00 a.m. through 6:00 p.m. on Sunday, June 25th.  Streets impacted by 
the Arts ‘n Crafts fair are as follows: 
 
3rd Street from Washington to Franklin 
Franklin and Clay Streets from 1st to 4th Streets 
 
This request includes parks, streets and other areas that are currently planned to be used 
for the events.  There is always the change of unexpected changes, due to bad weather or 
other unforeseen circumstances.  For this reason I would recommend we be flexible and 
we allow other parks and streets that may be affected at the last minute.  These changes 
or additions to the Sturgis Falls Celebration or Cedar Basin Music Festival would be 
approved without further notice to the Council.  The Sturgis Falls Celebration committee 
intends to post notices at many park entrances notifying patrons of the ordinance. 
 
Thank you, 
Captain Jeff  Harrenstein

 
    

294

Item 24.



   CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC SAFETY 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S Main St. 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:   Mayor Green and City Council 

From:   Chief Mark Howard   

Date:   April 21, 2023 

Re:   FY24 Towing Contract  

 
 
 
The public Safety Department has completed the bidding process for the FY24 towing 
contract.  Four towing companies, Rasmusson Towing, Sheetz Towing, Ray Mount Towing 
and Valley Wide Towing participated in the bidding process.   
 
Rasmusson Towing provided the lowest bid, setting pricing for City of Cedar Falls paid tows 
at $1.00.  Tows requested by the city that are paid by the vehicle owner for illegal parking, 
accidents or other tows will be set at fair market pricing.  There are also requirements and 
restrictions for storage fees and response times associated with towing.  A copy of the 
contract is attached for your approval. 
 
The Cedar Falls Public Safety Department recommends approval of the contract with 
Rasmusson Towing located at 9716 University Ave. Cedar Falls, IA. 
 

295

Item 25.



296

Item 25.



297

Item 25.



298

Item 25.



299

Item 25.



300

Item 25.



301

Item 25.



302

Item 25.



303

Item 25.



304

Item 25.



305

Item 25.



306

Item 25.



307

Item 25.



308

Item 25.



309

Item 25.



310

Item 25.



311

Item 25.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 24, 2023 

SUBJECT:  Extension to Contract for Grant Administration with INRCOG for the EDA 
  Grant: Travel, Tourism and Outdoor Recreation Program  
 
 
A contract was approved in July 2022 with INRCOG for administration of the grant 
Cedar Falls received from the US Economic Development Administration (EDA) 
American Rescue Plan Act Travel, Tourism, and Outdoor Recreation Program Grant.  
At that time, we anticipated the project would be completed by the end of 2023.  After 
some delays with the project, we now know the anticipated schedule to start 
construction will be fall 2023.  The construction contract calls for completion within one 
year.  Therefore, we propose a contract amendment with INRCOG to extend their grant 
administration duties through the end of 2024.  INRCOG reviewed their duties and is 
comfortable simply extending the deadline without any increases in compensation for 
services.   
 
Similar to our contracts with INRCOG on the CDBG grant support, the scope of services 
in the July 2022 contract for grant administration of the US EDA grant included activities 
supporting or performing actions to maintain federal grant compliance.  This includes 
monitoring compliance and maintaining records, reviewing contracts for compliance, 
ensuring Davis-Bacon compliance, and other financial management and reporting. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the contract amendment for INRCOG’s services to assist 
in compliance with the Economic Development Administration (EDA) through December 
31, 2024. 
 
 
 
xc: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III 

  

312

Item 26.



313

Item 26.



314

Item 26.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council  

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 24, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rotary Plaza Escrow  
 
 
On September 6, 2022, the City Council approved an Agreement with the Rotary Club 
for construction of a plaza, monument and recreation trail located in the area of 205-221 
West 1st Street.  Per the agreement, prior to starting the project, Rotary is to provide a 
$10,000 performance escrow to the City.  This Performance Escrow Account would be 
used only if, in an unfortunate circumstance, the project were to be abandoned after 
starting it and the City incurred costs to restore the park back to its original condition. 
 
A cash escrow agreement (performance) was Exhibit C to the approved agreement.  
Rotary has signed a cash escrow agreement and provided a check with the funds.  At 
this time, the Council is asked to sign the cash escrow agreement.  The project is 
anticipated to start late Spring/early Summer.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the escrow agreement for Rotary Plaza. 
 
 
 

315

Item 27.



316

Item 27.



317

Item 27.



318

Item 27.



319

Item 27.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

Phone: 319-273-8600 

Fax: 319-273-8610 

www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Administration Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: April 24, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 
  Riverwise Engineering – Supplemental Agreement No. 5 
 
 
Please find attached a proposed Supplemental Agreement No. 5 with Riverwise 
Engineering for construction services related to the Cedar River Recreational 
Improvement Project.  
 
As the project has progressed since 2017, the City has entered into a variety of 
supplemental agreements for design and permitting.  This history is described below.  
The original agreement with Riverwise which was approved by the City Council on 
September 5, 2017 included 30% preliminary design and agency coordination for the 
in-river and riverbank improvements from the upstream side of the Main Street Bridge 
to the downstream side of the W. 1st Street Bridge. Supplemental Agreement No. 1 was 
approved by the City Council on July 16, 2018 and included design services from 
preliminary design through agency permitting and final design. Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 was approved by the City Council on May 5, 2019 for the bathymetric 
survey services around the low head dam upstream of the 1st Street Bridge. 
Supplemental Agreement No. 3 was approved on October 19, 2021 to add construction 
management services and bid document preparation associated with the project 
construction.  Supplemental Agreement No. 4 was approved on April 20, 2022 for 
revised design and bid letting services after we rejected all bids in late 2021, sought 
additional grants and then worked to re-bid the project in 2022.  A contract for 
construction was awarded to PCI on December 19, 2022.  Following that, the Council 
indicated their interest to work with Riverwise Engineering for construction phase 
services.  Staff has been working through options on construction phase services which 
initially included exploring other consultants.  The attached Supplemental Agreement 
No. 5 would replace the former agreement on construction management, based on the 
current project.   
 
The attached proposed Supplemental Agreement No. 5 outlines the scope of services 
and fees for services not to exceed $198,170.00.  If a task requires less effort, the 

320

Item 28.



consultant will only bill for the effort needed.  The services include several on-site visits 
by the design engineer (or their representative), more frequent visits by construction 
specialists throughout the project, and monitoring by a local architectural firm that was a 
subcontractor in the design work as well. 
  
Below is an anticipated schedule for the project. 
 

Timeframe Action 

December 2022 Construction contract approved 

May 2023 Construction observation contract approved 

May-August 2023 Materials selection & mobilization 

August/September 
2023 

Construction start, weather & river levels 
permitting 

September 2024 Construction completed 

 
The Department of Community Development and Department of Public Works request 
your consideration and approval of the design services Supplemental Agreement No. 5 
with Riverwise Engineering. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact 
myself or Chase Schrage. 
 
xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

321

Item 28.



 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 5 

 
Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 
City Project Number MC-038-3290 

 
  4/24/23 

 
 
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa (CLIENT) and Riverwise Engineering, LLC (CONSULTANT) PO Box 706, Durango, CO 
81301, dated September 5, 2017 for 30% preliminary design, instream and upland 
(riverbank) drawings, cost estimating, and project reporting as part of the Cedar River 
Recreational Improvement Project (Agreement); and  
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT entered into Supplemental Agreement 1, dated 
July 16, 2018, for 60% preliminary design, permitting, final design and bid letting services; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT entered into Supplemental Agreement 2, dated 
May 6, 2019, for bathymetric survey services, and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT entered into Supplemental Agreement 3, dated 
October 19, 2021, for construction phase services, and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT entered into Supplemental Agreement 4, dated 
April 20, 2022, for revised design and bid letting services, and 
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to enter into this Supplemental 
Agreement No. 5 for construction phase services based on the revised design through 
Supplemental Agreement No. 4.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services 
Agreement as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

CONSULTANT shall perform additional professional services in connection with the 
Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project in accordance with the services listed 
in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 
II. COMPENSATION 

Compensation for the above Services will be a direct expense in accordance with 
Part VI of the Agreement.  The fee for these services is One Hundred Ninety-Eight 
Thousand One Hundred Seventy Dollars ($198,170.00). 

 

322

Item 28.



 
  Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. MC-038-3290 

III.   In all other aspects, the obligations of the CLIENT and CONSULTANT shall remain 
as specified in the Professional Services Agreement dated September 5, 2017 or as 
specified in Supplemental Agreements 1-4. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and 
year written below. 
 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT    APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
By: _________________________________ By: ________________________________ 
 
 
Printed Name: ________________________ Printed Name: _Shane Sigle____________ 
 
Title: ________________________________ Title: _Principal______________________ 
 
Date: ________________________________ Date: __4/24/23______________________ 
 
  

323

Item 28.



 
  Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. MC-038-3290 

EXHIBIT A 
Construction Phase Services & Compensation by Activity 

 

 
  

324

Item 28.



 
  Cedar River Recreational Improvement Project 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. MC-038-3290 

EXHIBIT A (continued) 
Construction Phase Services & Compensation by Activity 

 
 

 
 

 
 

325

Item 28.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project  
  Project No. SW-000-3293 
   Final Acceptance 
 
The 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project is completed and ready for final acceptance. This 
project involved the repair of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners. This 
project will assess the cost of repair to the individual property owners. 
 
 This project was under contract with Iowa Flat Works Concrete Construction of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. Attached please find the following final documents: 
 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
   -  Copy of Maintenance Bond, Iowa Flat Works 
   - Final Breakdown of Expenditures  
 
The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division, and 
are on file with the City Clerk: 
 

Boulder Contracting, LLC Suppliers: 
Benton’s Ready Mix Concrete  

Boulder Contracting, LLC subcontractors: 
Maloney Lawn Landscape Snow  

 
 
 
 
 
 326

Item 29.



 
 
This project was funded by Special Assessment and below is a breakdown of final 
contract costs by the funding source: 
 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Special Assessment   $39,797.85 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project was 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
            Brett Armstrong   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

  

4/24/23 

327

Item 29.



4/14/2023

328

Item 29.



No. 5

to

Project Number:

Contract Completion Date: 11/24/22

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

Bid                                                                   

Item                                   

Number

Description Unit

1 Off-Site Topsoil CY 17.25 110.00$              1,897.50$           10.00 3.79 417.34$              13.79 1,517.34$           -$                        1,517.34$           80% 380.16$              

2 Removal of Sidewalk SY 217.10 85.99$                18,668.43$        172.10 -                       -$                     172.10 14,798.88$        -$                        14,798.88$        79% 3,869.55$           

3 Sidewalk, PCC, 4 in, Class C SY 209.90 96.82$                20,322.52$        163.10 -                       -$                     163.10 15,791.34$        -$                        15,791.34$        78% 4,531.18$           

4 Sidewalk, PCC, 6 in, Class C SY 7.20 117.60$              846.72$              9.00 -                       -$                     9.00 1,058.40$           -$                        1,058.40$           125% (211.68)$             

5 Temporary Traffic Control LS 1.00 3,500.00$           3,500.00$           1.00 -                       -$                     1.00 3,500.00$           -$                        3,500.00$           100% -$                     

6 Seeding, Fertilizing and Mulching for Hydraulic Seeding SF 924.00 4.23$                  3,908.52$           500.00 240.40 1,016.89$           740.40 3,131.89$           -$                        3,131.89$           80% 776.63$              

49,143.69$        1,434.23$           39,797.85$        -$                        39,797.85$        9,345.83$           

Balance to                               

Date                                                  

( F - M )

It
e

m
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Estimate

Totals

Current Pay 

Application                            

Value                                             

( E x H )

Estimated 

Quantity Installed                                    

( G + H )

Total                    

Completed                    

Value                                           

( E x J )

Value of Materials 

Presently Stored                                     

(Column M on 

Stored Materials)

Total Completed                  

and Stored                 

to Date                                     

( K + L )

% Original 

Contract                          

( M ÷ F )

           Item

Bid                             

Quantity

Unit                                     

Price

Bid                                       

Value

Previous Pay 

Application 

Quantities

2022 Sidewalk Assessment

SW-000-3293

From (Contractor):

To (Owner):

Application Period:

Current Pay 

Application 

Quantities

Application Date: 03/23/23

Via (Engineer): Brett Armstrong

Engineer II

11/17/22 03/23/23

City of Cedar Falls

Iowa Flat Works

329

Item 29.



330

Item 29.



331

Item 29.



332

Item 29.



333

Item 29.



334

Item 29.



335

Item 29.



336

Item 29.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 25, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 5 
  Project No. SW-000-3293 
   Presentation of Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor  
 
The 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 5 is completed and ready for 
assessment. The project repaired deficient sidewalk adjacent to 62 private properties for 
a total assessment cost of $39,797.85.  
 
In 2021, approximately 75 notices were sent out for defective or missing sidewalks. The 
notices informed the property owners of their responsibility to repair the adjacent 
sidewalk. If the property owners didn’t repair the sidewalk, the City would repair the 
sidewalk and assess the property. Twenty percent of the property owners notified 
repaired the defective or missing sidewalk, and eighty percent of the property owners 
notified did not repair the defective or missing sidewalk.  The average cost of defective 
sidewalk is $454.67 with the highest cost at approximately $3,775.62.  
 
Attached please find the Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 
2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 5.  
 
I recommend that the City Council approve and accept the Final Statement of 
Expenditures for Material and Labor for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project for Zone 
5. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
 
 

  

337

Item 30.



338

Item 30.



LOCATION 

NO.
Property Owner Mailing Address City State Zip Code LOCATION Legal Description

Item No. 1 OFF-

SITE TOPSOIL 

(C.Y.)

Unit Price Extended Price % 

Item No. 2    

REMOVAL OF 

SIDEWALK 

(S.Y.)

 Unit Price 
 Extended 

Price 

Item No. 3  

SIDEWALK 

4" P.C.C., 

Class "C" 

(S.Y.)

 Unit Price  Extended Price 

Item No. 4 

REPLACE 

SIDEWALK 

6" P.C.C., 

Class "C" 

(S.F.)

 Unit Price 
Extended 

Price

Item No. 5 

TEMPORARY 

TRAFFIC 

CONTROL 

(L.S.)

Unit Price
Extended 

Price

Item No. 6       

SEEDING, 

FERTILIZING AND 

MULCHING FOR 

HYDRAULIC 

SEEDING (S.F.)

Unit Price
Extended 

Price
Totals

1 Price, Joseph D 706 LAKESHORE DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 706 Lakeshore Dr 8914-03-451-016 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

2 Lilly, Colleen A 818 LAKESHORE DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 818 Lakeshore Dr 8914-03-451-012 0.275315225 110.00$                 30.29$                   0.019755956 3.4 85.99$     295.46$         3.4 96.82$     332.67$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         15.6 4.23$       65.91$         794.34$        

3 Ridges Park Homeowners Assoc 619 Lake Ridge Dr Cedar Falls IA 50613 619 Lake Ridge Dr 8914-03-479-019 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

4 HEAD, DIANNE M 709 LAKE RIDGE DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 709 Lake Ridge Dr 8914-03-479-012 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

5 Patel, Dineshkum J 1216 LAKE RIDGE DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 1216 Lake Ridge Dr 8914-03-431-009 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

6 Hawthorne, Kyle 1224 LAKE RIDGE DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 1224 Lake Ridge Dr 8914-03-431-011 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

7 Peterson Olsen, Janice A 1011 LAKEVIEW DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 1011 Lakeview Dr 8914-03-453-001 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

8 Keys, Gary S 2806 GLEN OAKS DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 2806 Glen Oaks Dr 8914-03-477-001 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

9 Wunderlich, Chad A 903 SOUTH RIDGE DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 903 South Ridge Dr 8914-03-428-020 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

10 Wheeler, Deanna K 1005 SOUTH RIDGE DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 1005 South Ridge Dr 8914-03-428-027 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

11 Dickey, Gabriel 513 EAGLE RIDGE RD Cedar Falls IA 50613 513 Eagle Ridge RD 8914-10-228-004 0.43557089 110.00$                 47.92$                   0.031377106 5.4 85.99$     467.44$         5.4 96.82$     526.31$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         24.5 4.23$       103.51$       1,215.19$     

12 Holthaus, Kaila E  702 EAGLE RIDGE RD Cedar Falls IA 50613 702 Eagle Ridge RD 8914-03-429-005 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

13 Johnson, Todd A 727 EAGLE RIDGE RD Cedar Falls IA 50613 727 Eagle Ridge RD 8914-03-428-009 0.724031088 110.00$                 79.65$                   0.052295177 9.0 85.99$     777.01$         9.0 96.82$     874.87$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         40.5 4.23$       171.19$       1,972.71$     

14 Kolbet, Robyn M 809 EAGLE RIDGE RD Cedar Falls IA 50613 809 Eagle Ridge RD 8914-03-428-010 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

15 Denner, Susan 1674 OAKWOOD DR Waterloo IA 50701 1004 Eagle Ridge RD 8914-03-428-002 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

16 Schuller, Michael J 1117 EAGLE RIDGE RD Cedar Falls IA 50613 1117 Eagle Ridge RD 8914-03-426-025 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         0.0 96.82$     3.49$                 1.8 117.60$  211.68$       0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         0.5 4.23$       1.99$           461.22$        

17 Vick, Andrew D 413 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 413 Oak Park BLVD 8914-11-104-006 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

18 Bremner, Richard L 501 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 501 Oak Park BLVD 8914-11-104-004 0.219225742 110.00$                 24.12$                   0.015688553 2.7 85.99$     235.27$         0.0 96.82$     3.49$                 2.7 117.60$  317.52$       0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         0.5 4.23$       1.99$           652.39$        

19 Hill, Larry L 511 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 511 Oak Park BLVD 8914-11-104-003 0.283328008 110.00$                 31.18$                   0.020337013 3.5 85.99$     304.06$         3.5 96.82$     342.36$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.0 4.23$       67.79$         815.38$        

20 Sindt, Wesley 620 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 620 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-303-009 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

21 Zimmerman,William G Jr 621 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 621 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-301-054 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

22 Lair, Rodney D 702 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 702 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-303-007 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

23 Lytle, Aaron 810 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 810 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-303-003 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

24 Dabney, Erin E 811 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 811 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-301-048 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

25 West, Donald D 915 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls iA 50613 915 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-301-045 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

26 Walsh, Linda L  919 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 919 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-301-044 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

27 Narigon, Edward J 1006 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 1006 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-303-019 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

28 Murphy, George P 1018 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 1018 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-303-018 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

29 Vetter, Kimberly L 1203 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 1203 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-301-034 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

30 Rodomista, Vincent P 1212 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 1212 Oak Park BLVD 8914-02-303-012 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

31 Troyer, Timothy K 1304 OAK PARK BLVD Cedar Falls IA 50613 1304 Oak Park BLVD 8914-11-103-001 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

32 Miller, William L 2627 MINNETONKA DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 2627 Minnetonka DR 8914-02-301-026 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

33 Freiberg, Billy D 2701 MINNETONKA DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 2701 Minnetonka DR 8914-02-301-025 0.50768594 110.00$                 55.85$                   0.036606624 6.3 85.99$     544.83$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            2.7 117.60$  317.52$       0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         1,409.91$     

34 Wilson, Joshua J 2702 MINNETONKA DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 2702 Minnetonka DR 8914-02-301-058 1.429156015 110.00$                 157.22$                 0.103428239 17.8 85.99$     1,533.72$      16.0 96.82$     1,552.61$         1.8 117.60$  211.68$       0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         71.6 4.23$       302.79$       3,828.01$     

35 Iowa Annual Conf United Meth 3102 W 1ST ST APT 110 Cedar Falls IA 50613 205 N Highland DR 8914-11-126-039 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

36 Holland, John J 213 N HIGHLAND DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 213 N Highland DR 8914-11-126-038 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

37 Berregaard, Danny T 9032 BEAVER MEADOWS LN Cedar Falls IA 50613 325 N Genevieve ST 8914-11-201-028 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

38 Gray, Gerald L 222 N DIVISION ST Cedar Falls IA 50613 222 N Division ST 8914-11-203-014 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

39 Larsen Rentals LLC 2009 CENTRAL AVE Cedar Falls IA 50613 228 N Division ST 8914-11-203-013 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

40 Hagarty, Patrick 2106 GRAND BLVD Waterloo IA 50701 302 N Division ST  8914-11-203-012 0.331404708 110.00$                 36.46$                   0.023823359 4.1 85.99$     355.65$         4.1 96.82$     400.45$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         18.7 4.23$       79.07$         941.63$        

41 STEIERT, BRYCE 1412 RAINBOW DR Cedar Falls IA 50613 402 N Division ST 8914-11-203-006 0.187174609 110.00$                 20.60$                   0.013364323 2.3 85.99$     200.87$         2.3 96.82$     226.17$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         10.7 4.23$       45.23$         562.87$        

42 Folken, David W 936 PARKWAY CT Cedar Falls IA 50613 936 Parkway CT 8914-11-228-064 0.43557089 110.00$                 47.92$                   0.031377106 5.4 85.99$     467.44$         5.4 96.82$     526.31$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         24.5 4.23$       103.51$       1,215.19$     

43 Ver Lee, Kevin 1004 PARKWAY AVE Cedar Falls IA 50613 1004 Parkway AVE 8914-11-228-040 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

44 Verink, Bruce L 1015 PARKWAY AVE Cedar Falls IA 50613 1015 Parkway AVE 8914-11-227-011 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.88$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

45 Tournier, Darin 1109 PARKWAY AVE Cedar Falls IA 50613 1109 Parkway AVE 8914-11-227-013 1.212810867 110.00$                 133.42$                 0.087739686 15.1 85.99$     1,301.54$      15.1 96.82$     1,465.47$         0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         67.6 4.23$       285.87$       3,256.30$     

46 Swangel, Jill Suzanne 1115 PARKWAY AVE Cedar Falls IA 50613 1115 Parkway AVE 8914-11-227-014 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

47 Grossman, Karen J 1123 PARKWAY AVE Cedar Falls IA 50613 1123 Parkway AVE 8914-11-227-015 0.291340792 110.00$                 32.06$                   0.020918071 3.6 85.99$     312.66$         3.6 96.82$     352.04$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         16.5 4.23$       69.67$         836.42$        

48 Braley, Bradford S 1205 PARKWAY AVE Cedar Falls IA 50613 1205 Parkway AVE 8914-11-227-016 0.571788206 110.00$                 62.91$                   0.041255084 7.1 85.99$     613.62$         7.1 96.82$     690.91$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         32.0 4.23$       135.47$       1,572.91$     

49 Johnson, Trevor M 122 N COLLEGE ST Cedar Falls IA 50613 122 College ST 8914-11-228-011 0.43557089 110.00$                 47.92$                   0.031377106 5.4 85.99$     467.44$         5.4 96.82$     526.31$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         24.5 4.23$       103.51$       1,215.20$     

50 De Groote, Mark M 2705 COUNTRY MEADOW LN Cedar Falls IA 50613 2705 Country Medow LN 8914-03-479-007 0.147110693 110.00$                 16.19$                   0.010459035 1.8 85.99$     157.89$         1.8 96.82$     177.76$            0.0 117.60$  -$              0.02 3,500.00$   70.00$         8.5 4.23$       35.83$         457.66$        

$39,797.85

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT

CITY PROJECT NUMBER SW-000-3293

Final Statement of Expenditures for Material and Labor

339

Item 30.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PE, PhD 
 
 DATE: April 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Maintenance and Repair Agreement  
  Post-Construction Stormwater Management Plan 
  McWing LLC, 3015/3025/3035/3045 Capital Way, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
 
 
The Post-Construction Stormwater Control Ordinance requires a formal Maintenance 
and Repair Agreement for the stormwater management plan. The Maintenance and 
Repair Agreement will require the benefited property to undergo, at a minimum, an 
annual inspection and to maintain records of installation, maintenance and repair 
activities of the stormwater control devices. The agreement will also create an 
easement for the City to inspect and repair the stormwater control devices if the 
property owners fail or refuse to meet the requirements of the Maintenance and Repair 
Agreement. The Maintenance and Repair Agreement is attached for your review.  
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed the stormwater management plan and 
Maintenance and Repair Agreement for McWing LLC, 3015/3025/3035/3045 Capital 
Way, Cedar Falls, IA and finds it in accordance with City Code. The Engineering 
Division recommends the agreement be accepted by the City Council and recorded at 
the Black Hawk County Recorder’s Office.  
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer  
 

340

Item 31.



341

Item 31.



342

Item 31.



343

Item 31.



344

Item 31.



345

Item 31.



346

Item 31.



347

Item 31.



348

Item 31.



349

Item 31.



350

Item 31.



351

Item 31.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: April 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension 
  City Project Number: CP-197-3244      
  Bid Opening 
   

On Monday, April 24, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. bids were received and opened for the Various 
Intersection Improvements. A total of four (4) bids were received: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $1,741,648.04 

Dave Schmitt Construction $1,249,087.31 

Peterson Contractors, Inc. $1,410,498.00 

Owen Contracting, Inc. $1,538117.00 

Vieth Construction Corporation $1,567,181.38 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $1,741,648.04. Dave Schmitt Construction 
of Cedar Rapids, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $1,249,087.31. Attached 
is a bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Dave Schmitt Construction in the amount of $1,249,087.31. On May 
15, 2023, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City 
Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer   
 
 

352

Item 32.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 2010-108-C CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $15,500.00 $15,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

2 2010-108-D-1 ON-SITE TOPSOIL CY 550 $16.00 $8,800.00 $17.70 $9,735.00 $6.50 $3,575.00 $9.00 $4,950.00 $12.00 $6,600.00

3 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL CY 290 $32.00 $9,280.00 $50.00 $14,500.00 $23.00 $6,670.00 $19.00 $5,510.00 $40.00 $11,600.00

4 3010-108-F TRENCH COMPACTION TESTING LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $6,250.00 $6,250.00 $5,200.00 $5,200.00 $5,250.00 $5,250.00

5 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE CY 7790 $14.50 $112,955.00 $9.55 $74,394.50 $9.00 $70,110.00 $9.25 $72,057.50 $13.50 $105,165.00

6 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION , CLASS 12, BOULDERS CY 20 $600.00 $12,000.00 $27.00 $540.00 $75.00 $1,500.00 $25.00 $500.00 $63.00 $1,260.00

7 2010-108-F-0 BELOW GRADE EXCAVATION (CORE OUT) CY 121 $14.50 $1,754.50 $67.25 $8,137.25 $16.00 $1,936.00 $59.00 $7,139.00 $85.00 $10,285.00

8 2010-108-G-0 SUBGRADE PREPARATION SY 3651 $4.00 $14,604.00 $2.10 $7,667.10 $1.25 $4,563.75 $2.50 $9,127.50 $1.50 $5,476.50

9 2010-108-H-0 SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID TENSAR TX-160 SY 1825 $9.00 $16,425.00 $7.40 $13,505.00 $7.50 $13,687.50 $8.90 $16,242.50 $7.00 $12,775.00

10 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 12 IN. SY 3651 $20.00 $73,020.00 $18.00 $65,718.00 $18.25 $66,630.75 $20.00 $73,020.00 $18.50 $67,543.50

11 3010-108-D-0 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TONS 300 $32.50 $9,750.00 $29.00 $8,700.00 $36.75 $11,025.00 $27.50 $8,250.00 $40.00 $12,000.00

12 4010-108-A-1 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN., TRUSS LF 563 $83.00 $46,729.00 $64.50 $36,313.50 $75.00 $42,225.00 $62.00 $34,906.00 $96.00 $54,048.00

13 4010-108-A-2 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHLESS, PVC, IN., C900 SR18 LF 199 $250.00 $49,750.00 $127.50 $25,372.50 $135.00 $26,865.00 $142.00 $28,258.00 $140.00 $27,860.00

14 4010-108-E-1 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, TRENCHED, PVC, 4 IN., (SDR-23.5) LF 490 $89.00 $43,610.00 $43.00 $21,070.00 $54.00 $26,460.00 $40.00 $19,600.00 $55.00 $26,950.00

15 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. HDPE (PERFORATED) LF 420 $88.00 $36,960.00 $81.75 $34,335.00 $60.50 $25,410.00 $42.00 $17,640.00 $103.00 $43,260.00

16 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. RCP, 2000D LF 144 $73.00 $10,512.00 $88.50 $12,744.00 $87.75 $12,636.00 $49.50 $7,128.00 $85.00 $12,240.00

17 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER (SUBDRAIN) LF 271 $8.00 $2,168.00 $14.90 $4,037.90 $5.50 $1,490.50 $10.00 $2,710.00 $13.00 $3,523.00

18 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. LF 1094 $17.50 $19,145.00 $31.00 $33,914.00 $12.50 $13,675.00 $14.75 $16,136.50 $23.00 $25,162.00

19 4040-108-C-1 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, 6 IN. EA 4 $400.00 $1,600.00 $1,130.00 $4,520.00 $600.00 $2,400.00 $275.00 $1,100.00 $725.00 $2,900.00

20 4040-180-D-0 SUMP PUMP TAP EA 14 $300.00 $4,200.00 $750.00 $10,500.00 $285.00 $3,990.00 $150.00 $2,100.00 $375.00 $5,250.00

21 4040-108-D-1 SUBDRAIN CONNECTIONS (TO STORM SEWER INTAKE) EA 7 $325.00 $2,275.00 $600.00 $4,200.00 $350.00 $2,450.00 $160.00 $1,120.00 $500.00 $3,500.00

22 4040-108-D-1 SUBDRAIN CONNECTIONS (TO EXISTING SUBDRAIN) EA 2 $150.00 $300.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $300.00 $600.00 $75.00 $150.00 $250.00 $500.00

23 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 8" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) LF 612 $115.00 $70,380.00 $76.00 $46,512.00 $74.25 $45,441.00 $75.00 $45,900.00 $103.00 $63,036.00

24 5010-108-C-2 FITTINGS, DUCTILE IRON LBS. 500 $20.00 $10,000.00 $12.60 $6,300.00 $8.50 $4,250.00 $7.00 $3,500.00 $4.12 $2,060.00

25 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 3/4" EA 7 $2,000.00 $14,000.00 $1,650.00 $11,550.00 $2,500.00 $17,500.00 $925.00 $6,475.00 $1,800.00 $12,600.00

26 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE, LONGSIDE, 3/4" EA 6 $3,000.00 $18,000.00 $2,480.00 $14,880.00 $3,000.00 $18,000.00 $1,200.00 $7,200.00 $2,500.00 $15,000.00

27 5010-XX-1 20" x 8" TAPPING SLEEVE EA 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $6,200.00 $6,200.00 $5,100.00 $5,100.00

28 5010-XX-3 8" NITRILE GASKETS EA 10 $250.00 $2,500.00 $129.50 $1,295.00 $200.00 $2,000.00 $45.00 $450.00 $125.00 $1,250.00

29 5020-108-A-0 VALVE, 8" MJ GATE W/ BOX EA 1 $3,750.00 $3,750.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $4,275.00 $4,275.00

30 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EA 1 $9,000.00 $9,000.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $7,800.00 $7,800.00 $8,750.00 $8,750.00

31 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EA 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $650.00 $650.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $2,850.00 $2,850.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00

32 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48" DIA. EA 4 $5,000.00 $20,000.00 $5,350.00 $21,400.00 $4,850.00 $19,400.00 $3,100.00 $12,400.00 $4,575.00 $18,300.00

33 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48" DIA. EA 4 $8,500.00 $34,000.00 $6,000.00 $24,000.00 $9,155.00 $36,620.00 $8,950.00 $35,800.00 $6,525.00 $26,100.00

34 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-509 EA 6 $8,500.00 $51,000.00 $8,650.00 $51,900.00 $9,500.00 $57,000.00 $7,900.00 $47,400.00 $9,750.00 $58,500.00

35 6010-108-G-0 CONNECTION TO EXISTING MANHOLE EA 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,325.00 $1,325.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $2,650.00 $2,650.00 $1,425.00 $1,425.00

36 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 7 IN., CLASS "C" SY 3221 $50.00 $161,050.00 $49.50 $159,439.50 $82.75 $266,537.75 $83.25 $268,148.25 $88.50 $285,058.50

37 7020-108-B-0 PAVEMENT, HMA, SPECIAL SHAPING SY 288 $50.00 $14,400.00 $37.75 $10,872.00 $37.75 $10,872.00 $42.75 $12,312.00 $41.00 $11,808.00

38 7030-108-E-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK SY 94 $15.00 $1,410.00 $13.70 $1,287.80 $8.00 $752.00 $8.00 $752.00 $15.00 $1,410.00

39 7030-108-H-1 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY, PCC SY 155 $15.00 $2,325.00 $11.00 $1,705.00 $8.00 $1,240.00 $9.50 $1,472.50 $17.50 $2,712.50

40 7030-108-H-2 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY, GRAVEL SY 306 $10.00 $3,060.00 $4.10 $1,254.60 $5.00 $1,530.00 $2.50 $765.00 $8.00 $2,448.00

41 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" SY 160 $45.00 $7,200.00 $68.00 $10,880.00 $171.00 $27,360.00 $176.00 $28,160.00 $185.00 $29,600.00

42 7030-108-G-0 DETECTABLE WARNINGS SF 80 $350.00 $28,000.00 $95.00 $7,600.00 $61.00 $4,880.00 $61.00 $4,880.00 $66.00 $5,280.00

43 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" SY 104 $65.00 $6,760.00 $59.50 $6,188.00 $110.00 $11,440.00 $110.00 $11,440.00 $119.00 $12,376.00

44 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE TONS 50 $37.00 $1,850.00 $38.70 $1,935.00 $35.00 $1,750.00 $26.50 $1,325.00 $35.00 $1,750.00

45 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX SY 85 $150.00 $12,750.00 $270.00 $22,950.00 $275.00 $23,375.00 $580.00 $49,300.00 $275.00 $23,375.00

46 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, PCC SY 1037 $15.00 $15,555.00 $10.30 $10,681.10 $10.75 $11,147.75 $12.75 $13,221.75 $12.00 $12,444.00

47 7040-108-I-0 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL LF 701 $5.00 $3,505.00 $8.00 $5,608.00 $9.00 $6,309.00 $13.50 $9,463.50 $20.00 $14,020.00

48 8010-108-A TRAFFIC SIGNAL LS 1 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $340,000.00 $340,000.00 $348,000.00 $348,000.00 $375,000.00 $375,000.00 $368,000.00 $368,000.00

49 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA 23.91 $90.00 $2,151.90 $100.00 $2,391.00 $100.00 $2,391.00 $400.00 $9,564.00 $108.00 $2,582.28

Engineer Estimate Dave Schmitt Construction Peterson Contractors, Inc. Owen Contracting, Inc. Vieth Const. Corp.
Ashworth Drive Roadway Extension - Bid Tab

353

Item 32.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

50 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EA 18 $70.00 $1,260.00 $85.00 $1,530.00 $85.00 $1,530.00 $250.00 $4,500.00 $92.00 $1,656.00

51 8020-XX-1 STREET SIGNS (SIGNS, POST, & RECEIVER) EA 6 $350.00 $2,100.00 $275.00 $1,650.00 $275.00 $1,650.00 $800.00 $4,800.00 $300.00 $1,800.00

52 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $6,150.00 $6,150.00

53 9010-108-B SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING AC 0.71 $4,000.00 $2,840.00 $4,500.00 $3,195.00 $6,000.00 $4,260.00 $7,500.00 $5,325.00 $6,500.00 $4,615.00

54 9040-108-A-2 SWPPP MANAGEMENT LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $3,600.00 $3,600.00 $3,050.00 $3,050.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $1,950.00 $1,950.00

55 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW LF 2376 $2.50 $5,940.00 $2.10 $4,989.60 $2.25 $5,346.00 $2.25 $5,346.00 $2.50 $5,940.00

56 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL LF 2376 $0.75 $1,782.00 $0.01 $23.76 $0.75 $1,782.00 $0.75 $1,782.00 $0.85 $2,019.60

57 9040-108-O-1 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SY 244 $20.00 $4,880.00 $11.80 $2,879.20 $15.00 $3,660.00 $25.00 $6,100.00 $20.00 $4,880.00

58 9040-108-Q-2 EROSION CONTROL MULCHING, HYDROMULCHING AC 0.71 $3,000.00 $2,130.00 $3,000.00 $2,130.00 $2,500.00 $1,775.00 $4,000.00 $2,840.00 $2,750.00 $1,952.50

59 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, FILTER SOCK EA 7 $150.00 $1,050.00 $75.00 $525.00 $200.00 $1,400.00 $200.00 $1,400.00 $225.00 $1,575.00

60 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EA 7 $50.00 $350.00 $1.00 $7.00 $50.00 $350.00 $50.00 $350.00 $55.00 $385.00

61 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $200,000.00 $200,000.00 $40,500.00 $40,500.00 $67,500.00 $67,500.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $92,500.00 $92,500.00

62 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $3,250.00 $3,250.00

Engineer Estimate Dave Schmitt Construction Peterson Contractors, Inc. Owen Contracting, Inc. Vieth Const. Corp.

$1,567,181.38$1,735,651.94* $1,249,087.31 $1,410,498.00 $1,538,117.00

* The Engineer's estimate included a 10% contingency. This explains why the numbers in the
extension column do not add up to the total amount shown. This is only the case for the
engineer's estimate, not the bidding the contractors.

354

Item 32.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, Principal Engineer, PE 
 
 DATE: April 21, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1A  
  City Project Number RC-092-3271 
  Fee Title Acquisitions and Easements (Temporary and Permanent) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning the reconstruction of the North Cedar Heights Area 
Phase 1, primarily along West Ridgewood Drive and Timber Drive.  The project requires 
the acquisition of temporary and permanent easements and some fee title to complete 
construction. The owners of the following property have accepted our offer: 
 

Parcel # 
Property 
 Owner 

Street Address Perm. 
Esmt. 

Temp. 
Esmt. 

Fee 
Title 

211 Jennings 2315 E Ridgewood Dr x x x 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of this property. Also attached are the 
individual Owner Purchase Agreement, and the documentation for the temporary 
easement, permanent easement, and permanent acquisition. 
 
The City has used General Obligation Funds for the design and right of way portion of 
this project. The City entered into a Supplemental Agreement with AECOM, Inc., of 
Waterloo, Iowa, on May 16, 2022 for property acquisition services. Funds for this project 
are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in under item number 
109. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing documents and 
staff will complete the acquisition process for this parcel. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the 
North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1A. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Lisa Roeding, City Controller/Treasurer 

355

Item 33.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

356

Item 33.



357

Item 33.



358

Item 33.



359

Item 33.



360

Item 33.



361

Item 33.



362

Item 33.



363

Item 33.



364

Item 33.



365

Item 33.



366

Item 33.



367

Item 33.



368

Item 33.



369

Item 33.



370

Item 33.



371

Item 33.



372

Item 33.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE - City Engineer 
 
 DATE: April 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, AECOM Technical Services, Inc.   
  Greenwood Cemetery Slope Repair 
  City Project No. MC-029-3256 
 
Please find the attached Professional Service Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and 
AECOM Technical Services, Inc. that outlines the scope of services and costs for design services 
for the repair of the slope at Greenwood Cemetery. This Professional Service Agreement provides 
for detailed work, services, materials, equipment, personnel and supplies necessary to provide 
the design services for the project. Services will include design survey, geotechnical services, 
and design of the slope repair.         
  
The attached Professional Service Agreement includes the services for the design which shall be 
on an hourly basis and in a total amount not to exceed $140,800.00.   
 
This project will be funded by the Storm Water Fund and General Obligation Bonds. 
 
The Department of Public Works, Engineering Division requests your consideration and approval 
of this Professional Service Agreement with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. for design services.     
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

373

Item 34.



 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 
 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 
FAX 319-268-5197 
  
  
  
     
 
 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CONTRACT NO. MC-029-3256 

GREENWOOD CEMETERY 
SLOPE STABILIZATION PROJECT 

 
  
This Agreement is made and entered by and between AECOM Technical Services, Inc., a California 
corporation, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no cost 
to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor and 
materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 
quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

 
 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, require 

from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures equipment, 

374

Item 34.



materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such equipment, materials 
and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT to the full extent of the 
terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such equipment, and materials 
obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be limited to procuring 
guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all reasonable assistance to 
CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that any 
estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. CONSULTANT 
does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary from the opinions 
of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives any and all claims 
that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the results 
of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated December 13, 2011 as revised January 31, 2017 consisting of 11 pages, which 
are attached hereto, marked Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set out word 
for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 
pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 

375

Item 34.



 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed.  Total compensation is a not-
to-exceed fee of One Hundred Forty Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($140,800.00).   
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement may 
be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial failure 
by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating 
party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a non-monetary 
default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, CONSULTANT will be 
paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the termination in accordance 
with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments of 
service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities. 
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving 
CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other 
projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to 
the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not be liable for 
any unauthorized reuse of modification of its work product. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different than 

those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no warranty as to 
the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of the potential 
degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between the sealed 
original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 

376

Item 34.



IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety measures 
and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, in connection 
with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor shall 
CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction contractors, 
subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of such contractors; 
or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and employed by 
contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall not have the 
right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the CLIENT. In 
no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the construction 
work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under contracts with 
CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely responsible 
for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility and/or 
transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of such 
waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s obligations or 
responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of any pre-existing 
contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required forms relating to 
regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, treatment, 
transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party shall 
notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable to 
resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be submitted 
for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration Association (or 
any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute to mediation can 

377

Item 34.



be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between receipt of notice and 
submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 percent by CONSULTANT 
and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall be a condition required 
before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the negotiations or the mediation 
either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a statute of limitations, and 
CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have to obtain security for the 
payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District Court, 
Waterloo, Iowa. 

 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 

any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or communications 
heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be changed, modified, or 
amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event of any conflict between 
this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms and conditions of Exhibit C 
shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved by 

CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT of 
any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and CONSULTANT 

and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its exhibits 
limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either party that are 
available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:  By:                             
 
 
Printed Name:      Robert M. Green                Printed Name:              Douglas W. Schindel  
 
 
Title:                            Mayor  Title:                                 Vice President  
 
 
Date:  Date:                          
  

378

Item 34.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CONTRACT NO. MC-029-3256 

GREENWOOD CEMETERY 
SLOPE STABILIZATION PROJECT 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
A. Project Description 
 

This project is located at Greenwood Cemetery in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and will include preliminary 
and final design services for repairing an existing slope failure along approximately 850’ of the 
southeast slope that is bordered by the cemetery at the top of the slope and the Iowa Northern 
Railroad Company at the bottom of the slope.  The existing slope is relatively steep (2:1 or greater) 
and mostly tree covered.  Slope repair projects have been completed at other locations in the 
cemetery, and field visits to the site have indicated areas of failure within the designated project 
area. 
 
Project access during the initial phase of the project (survey and geotechnical), as well as during 
construction, will be difficult and will require extensive coordination between the City of Cedar Falls, 
Greenwood Cemetery, State Archaeologist Office and the Iowa Northern Railway Company. 

 
B. Scope of Services 
 

The Scope of Services will encompass and include detailed work, services, materials, equipment, 
personnel and supplies necessary to provide design survey, geotechnical services, preliminary and 
final design, temporary easement plat development, preparation of the NPDES and RR access 
permitting, project coordination and project administration.  Final plans and specifications will be 
prepared in a format suitable for a City of Cedar Falls letting. 
 
Design Services 
 
The Scope of Services for the Design Phase is further defined as follows: 
 
Design Survey and Data Collection (Tasks 1-3) 
 
The following tasks lead to the completion of the topographical survey required for the project, 
including field survey, base mapping and utility locates. 
 
Task 1 - Data Collection 
Task 2 - Survey and Base Mapping 

a. Coordination with cemetery personnel for grave location layout 
b. Topography survey from 50 feet beyond top of slope to toe of slope   
c. Locate ROW and section corners  

Task 3 - Survey Note Reduction and DTM Development 
 

Geotechnical Services, Soil Borings (Task 4) 
 
This task includes completing three soil borings, material testing and placement of one monitoring 
well along the top of the existing slope.  A subsurface exploration report will also be prepared.  This 
task will be completed by Terracon Consultants, Inc. (Terracon). 
 
Task 4 - Geotechnical (Terracon) 
 

379

Item 34.



Preliminary Design (Tasks 5-14) 
 
These tasks include developing the preliminary design stabilization plan, including grading, 
drainage and structural stabilization recommendations for the project.  It is anticipated no more 
than three alternatives will be developed for the project.  The recommended slope stabilization 
practices will be based on a review and analysis of the geotechnical information.  To assist in this 
analysis, AECOM requests that data collected from the instrumentation system installed along the 
rail lines are requested from the Canadian National Railroad and the Iowa Northern Railway 
Company.  This data will supplement the site investigation activities performed in Task 4 and assist 
with the design of the stabilization measures necessary for the project.  These tasks will also review 
potential property impacts to determine required acquisitions or temporary/permanent easements 
that will be required for construction, as well as development of a preliminary construction cost 
estimate.  Preliminary plans will be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls for review.  The following 
specific tasks are part of the preliminary design: 
 
Task 5 - Geotechnical Review and Analysis 
Task 6 - Title and Legend Sheets 
Task 7 - Typical Section and Details 
Task 8 - Plan and Profile Sheets 
Task 9 - Grading Sheets 
Task 10 - Cross Section Sheets 
Task 11 - Review Property Impacts, Temporary Easement Plat Development (Two temporary 
easements are estimated for this task.) 
Task 12 - Quality Control Review 
Task 13 - Preliminary Construction Cost Estimate 
Task 14 - Preliminary Plan Submittal 
 
Final Design, Construction Plans and Specifications (Tasks 15-30) 
 
These tasks include developing the final design stabilization plans, including grading, drainage and 
structural stabilization construction plans and specifications in a format suitable for a City of Cedar 
Falls letting format.  Included in these tasks will be typical sections and details, tabulations and 
quantities, plan and profile sheets, grading sheets, geometric layout sheets, cross section sheets 
and erosion control sheets.  Final plans will be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls for review at a 
pre-bid 90% interval.  The following specific tasks lead to the completion of the final construction 
plans and specifications:   
 
Task 15 - Title and Legend Sheets 
Task 16 - Typical Section and Details 
Task 17 - Bid Items, General Notes and Tabulations 

a. Bid Item and Quantity Listing 
b. Estimate Reference Information 
c. General Notes and Tabulations 

 Task 18 - Tabulations and Quantities 
Task 19 - Plan and Profile Sheets 
Task 20 - Grading Sheets 
Task 21 - Geometric Layout Sheets 
Task 22 - Earthwork Tabulation 
Task 23 - Design Cross Sections 
Task 24 - Erosion Control and SWPPP Plan Sheets 
Task 25 - Quality Control Review 
Task 26 - Pre-Bid Plan Submittal (90% Plans) 
Task 27 - Final Revisions 
Task 28 - Construction Cost Estimate 

380

Item 34.



Task 29 - Specifications 
 Task 30 - Printing and Submittals  

 
Project Meetings (Task 31) 
 
This task includes two project design meetings and two stakeholder meetings with adjacent 
property owners. 
 
Task 31 - Project Meetings 
 
Project Administration and Coordination with City of Cedar Falls (Tasks 32-38) 
 
These tasks include project administration and coordination throughout the project.  These tasks 
include preparation of the NPDES permit, coordination with the State Archeologists Office, Iowa 
Northern Railway Company, Greenwood Cemetery, the City of Cedar Falls and utility companies 
present in the project area.  Also included are pre-letting activities and general project 
administration.  The following tasks lead to the completion of project administration and 
coordination during the design phase of the project: 
 
Task 32 - Coordination with State Archeologists Office 
Task 33 - Coordination with Iowa Northern Railway Company 
Task 34 - Coordination with the City of Cedar Falls  
Task 35 - Coordination with Utilities 
Task 36 - Permitting (NPDES) 
Task 37 - Pre-Letting Activities 
Task 38 - Project Administration 
 
Exclusions: 
 
The following items are not included, but may be added by supplemental agreement: 
 
• Phase 1 Cultural Resources Review 
• Acquisition Services and Closing Services 
• The Scope of Services assumes the stabilization measures required for the project will be 

implemented at and above the level of the railway at the toe of the slope and work below the 
ordinary highwater level of the Cedar River will not be required.  If it is determined during the 
preliminary design phase of the project that this assumption is not valid, we will discuss the 
overall impact to the project with the City of Cedar Falls before proceeding to final design. 

 
Construction-Related Services 
 
The scope of construction-related services will be determined at the time the services are needed 
and defined under a future amendment to this agreement.  Construction-related services include 
construction staking, on-site field review, materials testing and contract administration during 
construction. 
 

  

381

Item 34.



EXHIBIT B 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CONTRACT NO. MC-029-3256 

GREENWOOD CEMETERY 
SLOPE STABILIZATION PROJECT 

 
  Original12/13/11 

Revision 01/31/2017 
 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
CONTRACTORS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

 
*** This document outlines the insurance requirements for all Contractors who perform work for the City of 
Cedar Falls. The term “contractor” as used in this document shall be defined as the general contractor, 
artisan contractor, or design contractor that will be performing work for the City of Cedar Falls under 
contract. 
 
1.  All policies of insurance required hereunder shall be with an insurer authorized by law to do 
business in Iowa.  All insurance policies shall be companies satisfactory to the City and have a rating of 
A-, VII or better in the current A.M. Best Rating Guide.   
 
2. All Certificates of Insurance required hereunder shall include the Cancellation & Material Change 
Endorsement.  A copy of this endorsement is attached in Exhibit 1. 
 
3.  Contractor shall furnish a signed Certificate of Insurance to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for the 
coverage required in Exhibit 1.  Such Certificates shall include copies of the following endorsements: 
 

a) Commercial General Liability policy is primary and non-contributing 
b) Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement – See Exhibit 1 
c) Governmental Immunities Endorsement – See Exhibit 1 

 
Copies of additional insured endorsements, executed by an authorized representative from an Insurer 
duly authorized to transact business at the location of the jobsite, must be provided prior to the first 
payment.    
 
Contractor shall, upon request by the City, provide Certificates of Insurance for all subcontractors and 
sub-sub contractors who perform work or services pursuant to the provisions of this contract. 
 
4. Each certificate shall be submitted to the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
5. Failure to provide minimum coverage shall not be deemed a waiver of these requirements by the 
City of Cedar Falls. Failure to obtain or maintain the required insurance shall be considered a material 
breach of this agreement.   
 
6. Failure of the Contractor to maintain the required insurance shall constitute a default under this 
Contract, and at City’s option, shall allow City to terminate this Contract for cause and/or purchase said 
insurance at Contractor’s expense. 
 
7. Contractor shall be required to carry the following minimum coverage/limits or greater, if required 
by law or other legal agreement; as per Exhibit 1: 
 

 This coverage shall be written on an occurrence, not claims made form. All deviations or 
exclusions from the standard ISO commercial general liability form CG 001 shall be clearly 
identified and shall be subject to the review and approval of the City.  

382

Item 34.



 
 Contractor shall maintain ongoing CGL coverage for at least 2 years following substantial 

completion of the Work to cover liability arising from the products-completed operations hazard 
and liability assumed under an insured contract.    

 
 Governmental Immunity endorsement identical or equivalent to form attached. 

 
 Additional Insured Requirement – See Exhibit 1. 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees, its 
boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees shall be named as 
an additional insured on General Liability Policies for all classes of contractors. 
 
Contractors shall include coverage for the City of Cedar Falls as an additional insured including 
ongoing and completed operations coverage equivalent to: ISO CG 20 10 07 04* and ISO CG 20 
37 07 04** 
 

*  ISO CG 20 10 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or Contractors – 
Scheduled Person or Organization” 

  
 ** ISO CG 20 37 07 04 “Additional Insured – Owners, Lessees or Contractors – 

Completed Operations”  
 
8. Errors & Omissions:  If the contract’s scope of services includes design work or other professional 
services, then Contractor shall maintain insurance coverage for errors, omissions and other negligent 
acts or omissions (except for intentional acts or omissions), arising out of the professional services 
performed by Contractor. Contractor shall maintain continuous Errors & Omissions coverage for a period 
commencing no later than the date of the contract, and continuing for a period of no less than 2 years 
from the date of completion of all work completed or services performed under the contract.  The limit of 
liability shall not be less than $1,000,000. 
 
9. Separation of Insured’s Provision: If Contractor’s liability policies do not contain the standard ISO 
separation of insured’s provision, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 
 
10. Limits: By requiring the insurance as set out in this Contract, City does not represent that 
coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect Contractor and such coverage and limits shall 
not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor’s liability under the indemnities provided to City in this 
Contract.  The City will have the right at any time to require liability insurance greater than that otherwise 
specified in Exhibit 1. If required, the additional premium or premiums payable shall be added to the bid 
price. 
 
11. Indemnification (Hold Harmless) Provision:  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor 
agrees to defend (for all non-professional claims), indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa against any and all claims, demands, suits or loss, including any and all outlay and 
expense connected therewith, and for damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or 
from the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents 
working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including, but not limited to, damages arising by reason 
of personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damages, which arises out of or is in any 
way connected or associated with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to the provisions of this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, 
omissions or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others working on 
behalf of the Contractor.  It is the intention of the parties that the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and 
appointed officials, directors, employees, and agents working on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
shall not be liable or in any way responsible for the injury, damage, liability, loss or expense incurred by 

383

Item 34.



the Contractor, its officers, employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor due to 
accidents, mishaps, misconduct, negligence or injuries either in person or property resulting from the work 
and/or services performed by the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract, except for and to 
the extent caused by the negligence of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.   
 
The Contractor expressly assumes full responsibility for damages or injuries which may result to any 
person or property by reason of or in connection with the work and/or services provided by the Contractor 
to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa pursuant to this contract to the extent arising out of the errors, omissions 
or negligent acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or others working on behalf of 
the Contractor, and agrees to pay the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa for all damages caused to the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa premises resulting from the work and/or services of the Contractor, its officers, 
employees, subcontractors, and others affiliated with the Contractor to the extent arising out of such 
errors, omissions or negligent acts. 
 
The Contractor represents that its activities pursuant to the provisions of this contract will be performed 
and supervised by adequately trained and qualified personnel, and the Contractor will observe, and cause 
its officers, employees, subcontractors and others affiliated with the Contractor to observe all applicable 
safety rules. 
 
12. Waiver of Subrogation: To the extent permitted by law, Contractor hereby releases the City of 
Cedar Falls, Iowa, its elected and appointed officials, its directors, employees, and agents working on 
behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, from and against any and all liability or responsibility to the 
Contractor or anyone claiming through or under the Contractor by way of subrogation or otherwise, for 
any loss or damage to property caused by fire or any other casualty and for any loss due to bodily injury 
to Contractor’s employees. This provision shall be applicable and in full force and effect only with respect 
to loss or damage occurring during the time of this contract or arising out of the work performed under this 
contract. The Contractor’s policies of insurance (except for Professional Liability) shall contain a clause or 
endorsement to the effect that such release shall not adversely affect or impair such policies or prejudice 
the right of the Contractor to recover thereunder. 
 

Completion Checklist 
 

 Certificate of Liability Insurance (2 pages) 
 Additional Insured CG 20 10 07 04 
 Additional Insured CG 20 37 07 04 
 Governmental Immunities Endorsement 

 
  

384

Item 34.



EXHIBIT 1 – INSURANCE SCHEDULE 
 
 
General Liability (Occurrence Form Only): 
 Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate  $2,000,000 
  Products-Completed Operations Aggregate Limit $2,000,000 
  Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000 
  Each Occurrence Limit  $1,000,000 
  Fire Damage Limit (any one occurrence) $     50,000 
  Medical Payments  $       5,000 

  
Automobile: (Combined Single Limit)     $1,000,000
 
 
 
                   
 
 
 
   
If the Contractor does not own any vehicles, coverage is required on non-owned and hired vehicles. 
 
 
Standard Workers Compensation  
 Statutory for Coverage A 
 Employers Liability:  
 Each Accident $  500,000 
 Each Employee – Disease $  500,000 
 Policy Limit – Disease $  500,000 
 
 
Umbrella:  $3,000,000 
The Umbrella/Excess Insurance shall be written on a per occurrence basis and if the Umbrella/Excess is 
not written on a follow form basis it shall have the same endorsements as required of the primary 
policy(ies). 
 
 
Errors & Omissions: $1,000,000 

 
 

  

385

Item 34.



City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 

 
The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees, its 
boards, commissions and/or authorities and their board members, employees, are included as Additional 
Insureds, including ongoing operations CG 2010 07 04 or equivalent, and completed operations CG 
2037 07 04 or equivalent. See Specimens. 
 
This coverage shall be primary to the Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any other insurance 
or similar protection available to the Additional Insureds, whether other available coverage be primary, 
contributing or excess. 

 
 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 
(For use when including the City as an Additional Insured) 

 
1. Nonwaiver of Government Immunity. The insurance carrier expressly agrees and states that the 
purchase of this policy and the including of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa as an Additional Insured does 
not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity available to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa under 
Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
2. Claims Coverage. The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of insurance shall cover 
only those claims not subject to the defense of governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 
670.4 as it now exists and as it may be amended from time to time. 
 
3. Assertion of Government Immunity. The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa shall be responsible for 
asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any time and shall do so upon the 
timely written request of the insurance carrier. Nothing contained in this endorsement shall prevent the 
carrier from asserting the defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
4. Non-Denial of Coverage. The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage under this policy and the 
insurance carrier shall not deny any of the rights and benefits accruing to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
under this policy for reasons of governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent jurisdiction 
has ruled in favor of the defense(s) of governmental immunity asserted by the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 
 
5. No Other Change in Policy. The insurance carrier and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa agree that the 
above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise change or alter the coverage 
available under the policy. 

cancellation and material changes endorsement 
 
Thirty (30) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in 
coverage and/or limits and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of premium shall 
be sent to: Risk Management Office, City of Cedar Falls, City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. This endorsement supersedes the standard cancellation 
statement on the Certificate of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached.  
Contractor agrees to furnish the City with 30 days advance written notice of 
cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in coverage and/or limits, and 10 days advance 
written notice of non-payment of premium. 
 
  

386

Item 34.



 

 

387

Item 34.



  

388

Item 34.



 

389

Item 34.



  

390

Item 34.



EXHIBIT C 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
CONTRACT NO. MC-029-3256 

GREENWOOD CEMETERY 
SLOPE STABILIZATION PROJECT 

 
  2/9/12 

 
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors who perform work 
or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, “Contractor,” as used in this document, 
includes an engineer, an architect, and any other design professional providing professional services to 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed by an 
authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services to be 
performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, or employees, shall be 
deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable federal, state and 
local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies available to it at law 
or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or incapable of 
being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining provisions of this Contract shall 
nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no provision shall be deemed dependent upon any 
other provision unless so expressed herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights or obligations 
hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent may be withheld in the sole and 
absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature extend beyond 
the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this Contract. 
 
 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be construed in 
accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Iowa, 
excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that the exclusive jurisdiction and venue 
shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall 
not be removed to federal court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to 
submit all disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract shall 
be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for 
the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a default under this Contract. 
 

391

Item 34.



 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no circumstances be 
obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than thirty (30) days 
from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within thirty (30) days, the City shall pay 
interest thereon at the rate provided for by Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor documents or 
records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records under the Iowa Open Records 
Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of 
such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the Contractor or any 
other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether consequential, indirect, special, or punitive 
damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be limited to any 
specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by the City to the Contractor 
under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided for in the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any other party shall 
conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by Iowa law, on 
the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the Contractor or other party under 
the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved by the City 
Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor and City Clerk of the City. 
 
 19. Warranties.  Contractor represents and warrants that all services furnished to the City 
under this Contract shall be furnished in a skilled and workmanlike manner, in accordance with the 
degree of skill and care that is required by current, good and sound practices applicable to the 
Contractor’s industry or profession, and as otherwise required by applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other party for delays 
in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from such delays, that may result from 
acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, extraordinary weather conditions or other natural 
catastrophes, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each 
party will take reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 
 
 
L:\Secure_DCS\Administration\AGREE\PROF\CF Greenwood Cemetery Slope Stabilization.docx 

392

Item 34.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: May 1st, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Alley Reconstruction Project  
  City Project Number: RC-000-3298 
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 
 

The City of Cedar Falls is planning to This project involves the reconstruction of three (3) 
alleys, two (2) of which are concrete and one (1) of which are a permeable alley. Work shall 
include a combination of excavation and backfill of the alley areas; removal and replacement 
of driveway and sidewalk and of PCC curb & gutter; sub drain; placement of storage and filter 
aggregate; permeable interlocking clay brick paver installation, seeding, and concrete, 
asphalt or gravel driveway replacement. The project will require the acquisition of temporary 
easements from four (4) properties to complete construction. The owners of the following four 
(4) properties have accepted our offer: 

 
Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

5 Beverly K. Kuecker 316 W. 13th Street Temporary Construction Easement  

6 Doretta J Brandhorst 1306 Franklin 
Street 

Temporary Construction Easement  

7 Emma K. and 
Stephanie A. Laures  

1316 Franklin 
Street 

Temporary Construction Easement  

8 Nathan D. and Erin 
M. Dalziel 

1321 Clay Street  Temporary Construction Easement  

 

Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties.  
 

The City will use Street Construction Funds for the design and right of way portion of this 
project. Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program 
in FY23 under item number 119. 
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City Council 
state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisitions and authorize the 
Mayor to execute the agreements for the 2023 Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 

xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

393

Item 35.



5
B

ev
er

ly
 K

. K
ue

ck
er

31
6 

W
. 1

3t
h 

S
t

6
D

or
et

ta
 J

. B
ra

nd
ho

rs
t

13
06

/1
30

8 
F

ra
nk

lin
 S

t
7

E
m

m
a 

K
. S

te
ph

an
ie

A
. L

au
re

s
13

16
 F

ra
nk

lin
 S

t

8
N

athan D
. E

rin M
.

D
alziel

1321 C
lay S

t

394

Item 35.



395

Item 35.



396

Item 35.



397

Item 35.



398

Item 35.



399

Item 35.



400

Item 35.



401

Item 35.



402

Item 35.



403

Item 35.



404

Item 35.



405

Item 35.



406

Item 35.



407

Item 35.



408

Item 35.



409

Item 35.



410

Item 35.



411

Item 35.



412

Item 35.



413

Item 35.



414

Item 35.



415

Item 35.



416

Item 35.



417

Item 35.



418

Item 35.



419

Item 35.



420

Item 35.



421

Item 35.



422

Item 35.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Alley Reconstruction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3298 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Alley Reconstruction Project. 
 
We recommend setting Monday, May 15, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project, and Friday, May 26, 2023 at 10:00 a.m. as the date and 
time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be 
published by Friday, May 5, 2023. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for 
distribution to contractors on Friday, May 5th, 2023, allowing for two (2) weeks of review 
before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the reconstruction of three (3) alleys, two (2) of which are concrete 
and one (1) of which are permeable alleys. Work shall include a combination of excavation 
and backfill of the alley areas; removal and replacement of driveway and sidewalk and of 
PCC curb & gutter; sub drain; placement of storage and filter aggregate; permeable 
interlocking clay brick paver installation, seeding, and concrete, asphalt, or gravel 
driveway replacement. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $256,640.00. The project 
will be funded by the Storm Water Fund, and Street Construction Fund.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Alley 
Reconstruction Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

423

Item 36.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL UNITS TOTAL

1 4040-108-D-0 SUMP PUMP AND ROOF DRAIN TAP EACH $900.00 5 $4,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 5 $4,500.00

2 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $50.00 45 $2,250.00 26 $1,300.00 19 $950.00 0 $0.00

3 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. $17.00 333 $5,661.00 171 $2,907.00 79 $1,343.00 83 $1,411.00

4 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 6 IN. S.Y. $20.00 1266 $25,320.00 290 $5,800.00 476 $9,520.00 500 $10,000.00

5 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15" NON-PERF, HDPE L.F. $90.00 271 $24,390.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 271 $24,390.00

6 4020-211 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH $500.00 2 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $1,000.00

7 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. L.F. $15.00 271 $4,065.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 271 $4,065.00

8 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. $15.00 298 $4,470.00 298 $4,470.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

9 4040-108-C-1 SUBDRAIN CLEANOUT, TYPE A-1, 6" EACH $600.00 2 $1,200.00 2 $1,200.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

10 5020-108-E-0 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EACH $200.00 1 $200.00 1 $200.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

11 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SINGLE FLAT EACH $6,000.00 2 $12,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $12,000.00

12 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH $800.00 2 $1,600.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 2 $1,600.00

13 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $65.00 1157 $75,205.00 300 $19,500.00 357 $23,205.00 500 $32,500.00

14 7010-108-E-0 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.5 FT. WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. $65.00 40 $2,600.00 40 $2,600.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

15 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. $10.00 41 $410.00 41 $410.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

16 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $10.00 8 $80.00 8 $80.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

18 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $100.00 108 $10,800.00 53 $5,300.00 55 $5,500.00 0 $0.00

19 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE S.Y. $15.00 15 $217.50 11 $157.50 4 $60.00 0 $0.00

20 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, 7"P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. $300.00 37 $11,100.00 37 $11,100.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

21 7040-108-C-0 PATCH. PARTIAL DEPTH, HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS $250.00 6 $1,500.00 6 $1,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

22 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL S.Y. $12.00 545 $6,540.00 45 $540.00 0 $0.00 500 $6,000.00

23 7040-108-I-0 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL L.F. $10.00 40 $400.00 40 $400.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

24 7080-10-8-B-0 ENGINEERING FABRIC S.Y. $4.00 234 $936.00 234 $936.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

25 7080-108-D-0 STORAGE AGGREGATE S.Y. $15.00 234 $3,510.00 234 $3,510.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

26 7080-108-E-0 FILTER AGGREGATE S.Y. $10.00 234 $2,340.00 234 $2,340.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

27 7080-108-F-0 PERMEABLE INTERLOCKING PAVERS, CLAY BRICK S.Y. $14.00 67 $938.00 67 $938.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

28 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $7,500.00 1 $7,500.00 1 $7,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

29 9020-108-A-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $1.50 2365 $3,547.50 1,365 $2,047.50 1,000 $1,500.00 0 $0.00

30 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. $10.00 100 $1,000.00 100 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

31 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. $10.00 100 $1,000.00 100 $1,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

32 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH $375.00 4 $1,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $1,500.00

33 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH $90.00 4 $360.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 4 $360.00

34 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. $35,000.00 1 $35,000.00 1 $35,000.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

35 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS $3,500.00 1 $3,500.00 1 $3,500.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00

$256,640.00 TOTAL= $115,236.00 TOTAL= $42,078.00 TOTAL= $99,326.00TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

2ND & 3RD - MAIN & 

STATE

APRIL 20,  2023

2023 ALLEY RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. RC - 000 - 3298

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS

AND QUANTITIES

12TH & 13TH - WALNUT & 

IOWA

13TH & 14TH - FRANKLIN 

& CLAY

424

Item 36.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: April 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Seal Coat 
  City Project Number: SC-000-3311 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Seal Coat Project. 
 
We recommend setting Monday, May 15, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for the 
public hearing on this project, and Friday, May 26, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders be published 
by Friday, May 5, 2023. The Plans and Specifications will be ready for distribution to 
contractors on Friday, May 5th, 2023, allowing for two (2) weeks of review before contract 
letting. 
 
This project involves seal coating five (5) street sections, two (2) single lane drives for lift 
stations, multiple single lane drives within three (3) cemeteries, and one parking lot; for a 
total covering of 43,870 S.Y. of seal coat.  Work shall include proper surface preparation 
and proper placement and compaction of the surface. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $230,923.00. The project 
will be funded by Local Sales Tax and the Street Construction Fund.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Seal Coat 
Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

425

Item 37.



Item # Description Units Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

1  Surface Preparation S.Y. 28,260.00 0.50$             14,130.00$         

2  Seal Coat S.Y. 43,870.00 4.00$             175,480.00$       

3  Pavement Markings, Painted STA. 1.2 100.00$        120.00$               

4  Pavement Markings,  Handicapped Symbols EA. 2 100.00$        200.00$               

5  Mobilization L.S. 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$         

6  Traffic Control L.S. 1 10,000.00$  10,000.00$         

20,993.00$         

230,923.00$       

10 % Contingency:

Total:

2023 Seal Coat Project
Project No. SC-000-3311

Engineer's Cost Estimate

City of Cedar Falls

4/24/2023

426

Item 37.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
Financial Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members  

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: April 19, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY2023 Budget Amendment 

 
Please find attached the notice for a FY2023 budget amendment.  This budget 
amendment is necessary due to timing of various projects and participation in various 
grants.     
 
The Code of Iowa requires that the City have a public hearing and I would request 
that the hearing be set for May 15, 2023. 
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
       Ron Gaines, City Administrator 
 
 
 
  
  

427

Item 38.



REVENUES & OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Total Budget
as Certified

or Last Amended

Current
Amendment

Total Budget After
Current Amendment

Taxes Levied on Property 1 23,906,560 0 23,906,560

Less: Uncollected Delinquent Taxes - Levy Year 2 0 0 0

Net Current Property Tax 3 23,906,560 0 23,906,560

Delinquent Property Tax Revenue 4 0 0 0

TIF Revenues 5 5,985,020 0 5,985,020

Other City Taxes 6 8,079,695 0 8,079,695

Licenses & Permits 7 1,031,000 0 1,031,000

Use of Money & Property 8 633,452 0 633,452

Intergovernmental 9 17,700,020 4,230,620 21,930,640

Charges for Service 10 15,220,550 433,200 15,653,750

Special Assessments 11 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 12 1,104,483 2,284,400 3,388,883

Other Financing Sources 13 1,885,000 630,000 2,515,000

Transfers In 14 13,790,570 0 13,790,570

Total Revenues & Other Sources 15 89,336,350 7,578,220 96,914,570

EXPENDITURES & OTHER FINANCING USES

Public Safety 16 13,446,710 91,900 13,538,610

Public Works 17 19,449,090 5,385,850 24,834,940

Health and Social Services 18 28,000 0 28,000

Culture and Recreation 19 8,665,100 256,000 8,921,100

Community and Economic Development 20 2,989,600 90,620 3,080,220

General Government 21 6,310,200 3,000 6,313,200

Debt Service 22 2,129,200 0 2,129,200

Capital Projects 23 30,515,470 13,550,500 44,065,970

Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 83,533,370 19,377,870 102,911,240

Business Type/Enterprise 25 9,205,410 1,119,000 10,324,410

Total Gov Activities & Business Expenditures 26 92,738,780 20,496,870 113,235,650

Transfers Out 27 13,790,570 0 13,790,570

Total Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 106,529,350 20,496,870 127,026,220

Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 -17,193,000 -12,918,650 -30,111,650

Beginning Fund Balance July 1, 2022 30 89,733,998 0 89,733,998

Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2023 31 72,540,998 -12,918,650 59,622,348

Explanation of Changes: These over expenditures are primarily due to timing of capital projects and participation in various grant programs.  Some of the
expenditures are covered by additional revenues; intergovernmental, charges for services, miscellaneous, other financing sources, as well as cash reserves.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - AMENDMENT OF CURRENT BUDGET
City of CEDAR FALLS

Fiscal Year July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

The City of CEDAR FALLS will conduct a public hearing for the purpose of amending the current budget for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023

Meeting Date/Time: 5/15/2023 07:00 PM Contact: Jennifer Rodenbeck Phone: (319) 273-8600 ext: 5108

Meeting Location: City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA

There will be no increase in taxes. Any residents or taxpayers will be heard for or against the proposed amendment at the time and place specified above. A
detailed statement of: additional receipts, cash balances on hand at the close of the preceding fiscal year, and proposed disbursements, both past and
anticipated, will be available at the hearing. Budget amendments are subject to protest. If protest petition requirements are met, the State Appeal Board will
hold a local hearing. For more information, consult https://dom.iowa.gov/local-gov-appeals.

04/18/2023 05:57 PM Page 1 of 1
428

Item 38.



  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: May 1, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Setting Public Hearing date for Right-of-Way Vacation Request – Hudson Road  
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Street Right-of-Way Vacation for a portion of Hudson Road  
(Case #VAC23-001) 
 

PETITIONER: David Nichols 
 

LOCATION: 
 

1,728 sq. ft. of public right-of-way located on the west side of Hudson Road 
approximately 200 feet north of the intersection of Hudson Road and 
Ashworth Drive.   

 
PROPOSAL 
David A. Nicol has requested a vacation of 1,728 sq. ft. (parcel 1) of the public right-of-way 
located on the west side of Hudson Road approximately 200 feet north of the Ashworth Drive 
intersection (see attached ROW exhibit). As you are aware, Mr. Nicol is in the process of 
rezoning the property adjacent to Hudson Road and Ashworth Drive, to R-1, Residence 
District. If the rezoning is approved, he intends to submit a preliminary and final plat for the 
property. The proposed vacation will allow for a more typical rectangular home lot along the 
eastern edge of the property. In addition, the City would like to obtain an additional 2785 sq. ft. 
(parcel 2) of right-of-way for the construction of the Ashworth Drive extension. Mr. Nicol has 
agreed to provide the additional right-of-way at the time of final platting of his subdivision. 
 
SETTING PUBLIC HEARING DATE 
An exhibit is attached to this report, which indicates the area requested for vacation. This 
portion of right-of-way was conveyed to the City in 1988 by James and Jacqueline Juhl for the 
widening of Hudson Road to four (4) lanes. There is a 20 inch water main running through the 
northern portion of the area which has been requested to be vacated, therefore, a plat and an 
easement will be required when the property is conveyed to Mr. Nicol.  
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

     VISITORS & TOURISM/  

PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES INSPECTION SERVICES RECREATION & COMMUNITY PROGRAMS CULTURAL PROGRAMS 

220 CLAY STREET 220 CLAY STREET  110 E. 13TH
 STREET  6510 HUDSON ROAD 

PH: 319-273-8606 PH: 319-268-5161 PH: 319-273-8636 PH: 319-268-4266 

FAX: 319-273-8610 FAX: 319-268-5197 FAX: 319-273-8656 FAX: 319-277-9707 

 

429

Item 39.



RECOMMENDATION  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission considered this request for right-of-way vacation at their 
meeting on April 12, 2023, and recommend approval, subject to the dedication of an easement 
for the water main running through the northern portion of the property.  
 
A full staff report will be forwarded to the Council for consideration on the hearing date.  
 
Based on the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Community 
Development Department recommends that the City Council set a public hearing date for May 
15, 2023 to consider this request.  
 
 
Attachments: Resolution setting public hearing date 
  Right of Way Vacation exhibit  
   

 

430

Item 39.



431

Item 39.



 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PROPOSAL TO VACATE A PORTION OF 

HUDSON ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY BY THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 
 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, will 
hold a public hearing on an ordinance to vacate the following described right-of-way with the intent 
to make this land available for sale and conveyance, subsequent to vacation, according to State 
law: 
 

A PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 

NO. 26, TOWNSHIP NO. 89, RANGE NO. 14 WEST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL 

MERIDIAN, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 13 OF PRAIRIE WINDS 4TH ADDITION, ALSO 

BEING THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY OF HUDSON ROAD, THENCE S89⁰52’43”E 

21.60’; THENCE S00⁰19’59”W 80.31’; THENCE N89⁰55’21” 21.42’ ALONG THE 

SAID RIGHT OF WAY OF HUDSON ROAD; THENCE N00⁰12’25”E 80.33’ 

ALONG THE SAID RIGHT OF WAY OF HUDSON ROAD TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.04 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

There will be a public hearing on said proposed change on the 15th day of May 2023, at 7:00 
p.m. at the Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls. Documents describing the 
rezoning are now on file in the office of the City Clerk at the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and is 
available for reference and inspection by the public. Public comments on the proposed change 
to the Zoning Map may be made in writing at any time prior to the public hearing as set forth 
herein and oral objections will be heard at said hearing. 

 

 ___________________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

432

Item 39.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by:  Thom Weintraut, Planning III, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 
After Recording, Return to: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 220 Clay St., Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____________________ 
 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING PUBLICATION OF NOTICE AND SETTING DATE FOR PUBLIC 
HEARING ON A PROPOSAL TO VACATE A PORTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY ALONG 

HUDSON ROAD IN CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has 
recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, the vacation of a portion of 
right-of-way along Hudson Road, as described below, subject to a separate perpetual utility 
easement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council does hereby propose to consider vacating said portion of 
Hudson Road right-of-way after public hearing on required notice hereof, retaining perpetual 
easements, with the intent to make this land available for sale and conveyance according to State 
law. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, that the City Clerk be and is hereby authorized and directed to publish notice of a public 
hearing to be held in the Council Chambers of the City Hall of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, at 
7:00 p.m. on the 1st day of May 2023, on the proposal to vacate the following described right-of-
way:  

 
A PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 

NO. 26, TOWNSHIP NO. 89, RANGE NO. 14 WEST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPAL 

MERIDIAN, CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 13 OF PRAIRIE WINDS 4TH ADDITION, ALSO 

BEING THE WEST RIGHT OF WAY OF HUDSON ROAD, THENCE S89⁰52’43”E 

21.60’; THENCE S00⁰19’59”W 80.31’; THENCE N89⁰55’21” 21.42’ ALONG THE 

SAID RIGHT OF WAY OF HUDSON ROAD; THENCE N00⁰12’25”E 80.33’ 

ALONG THE SAID RIGHT OF WAY OF HUDSON ROAD TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.04 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 

433

Item 39.



 
 
 
 
ADOPTED this 1st day of May 2023. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
 Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   ______________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

434

Item 39.



435

Item 40.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 5/01/23 COUNCIL MEETING



436

Item 40.



437

Item 40.



438

Item 40.



439

Item 40.



440

Item 40.



441

Item 40.



442

Item 40.



443

Item 40.



444

Item 40.



445

Item 40.



446

Item 40.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 5/01/23 MEETING



447

Item 40.



448

Item 40.



449

Item 40.



450

Item 40.



451

Item 40.



452

Item 40.



453

Item 40.



454

Item 40.



455

Item 40.



456

Item 40.



457

Item 40.



458

Item 40.



459

Item 40.



460

Item 40.



461

Item 40.



462

Item 40.



463

Item 40.



464

Item 40.



465

Item 40.



466

Item 40.



467

Item 40.



468

Item 40.



469

Item 41.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of April 17, 2023
	230417MINUTES

	Item 2.	Condemnation Hearing - 1312 Clay Street
	1 -  Condemnation hearing - 1312 Clay - Final
	1312 Clay Street - Condemnation  Hearing

	Item 3.	PH - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction
	1. Memo PH - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction - Phase 1A
	2. Cost Estimate

	Item 4.	3026-Reuse of defunct institutional buildings
	1 - Staff Report to CC - Conditional Use
	2 - Ord 3026 - Salon as Conditional Use in Institutional Buildings

	Item 5.	3027-Signage for Institutional uses
	1 - Memo.CC. PH signs for civic uses in CD-DT.4.17.23
	2 - Ord 3027- signs for civic.institutional uses in character districts (2)

	Item 6.	3028-Rezone Hudson-Ashworth
	1. CC Staff Report 4919 Hudson Rd Rezoning
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. Nicol Legal Description for Rezoning
	4. Nicol Rezoning Exhibit Plat - Nicol 1.11.23
	5. City Legal Description for Rezoning
	6. City Rezoning Exhibit Plat
	7. Ord 3028-Rezoning-4919 Hudson Road (1)

	Item 7.	3029-Rezone BH Park-Cypress
	1_PZ RZ22-004
	2. REZoningLocationMap
	3. Sands Rezoning Plat 3-2-23
	4.public comment
	5. Ord 3029-Rezoning-RZ22-004

	Item 8.	Standing Committee Minutes-04/17/23
	04-17-23 Standing Committees Minutes-Final

	Item 9.	Proclamation-Pride Month
	2023-04-20_Pride Month Proclamation

	Item 10.	Re-appointment-Jeff Engel
	2023-04-24_UBT_EngelReappoint

	Item 11.	Mobile Merchant-Big Acai
	Big Acai Mobile Merchant with approvals

	Item 12.	Departmental Monthly Report
	03 - March 2023 Monthly Report

	Item 13.	Tobacco Permits 05/01/2023
	05012023 Tobacco Applications

	Item 14.	Liquor Beer 5-1-23
	5-1-23 Retail alcohol

	Item 16.	CFU Transfer
	CFU Transfer

	Item 17.	Assessment-210 West 22nd Street
	210 W 22nd St - Assessment

	Item 18.	Assessment-804 Seerley Blvd.
	804 Seerley Blvd - Assessment

	Item 19.	Assessment-818 W Seerley Blvd.
	818 Seerley Blvd - Assessment

	Item 20.	Assessment-1022 West 22nd Street
	1022 W 22nd St - Assessment

	Item 21.	Assessment-1122 West 22nd Street
	1122 W. 22nd St - Assessment

	Item 22.	Assessment-2413 Olive Street
	2413 Olive St- Assessment

	Item 23.	Concessions Agreement-Myers Cox
	Food Vendor memo
	Concessions April 2023-clean (3)
	Insurance Endorsement

	Item 24.	Sturgis Falls Dates & Locations
	1-Sturgis Falls-Animals 2023
	2-Sturgis Falls Dates & Locations - Animals

	Item 25.	Towing Contract
	1-FY24 Tow memo
	2-Tow Contract-Rasmussen

	Item 26.	First Amendment-Agreement INRCOG
	1. Council memo extension 5-1-23
	2. 1st amendment-INRCOG signature

	Item 27.	Rotary Plaza Escrow
	1. Rotary escrow memo 4-21-23
	2. signed agreement

	Item 28.	No. 5 - Cedar River Rec Project - Riverwise Engineering
	1. Supplemental Agreement #5 May 2023
	2. Riverwise Supplemental Agreement No 5_signed04242023

	Item 29.	2022 Sidewalk Assessment - Final Out
	1. Final Out Memo - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	2.Pay Application Final (Retainage Release) - Signed
	3. 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project Iowa Flatworks Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
	4.Lein Waivers

	Item 30.	2022 Sidewalk Assessment-Final Statement
	1. Memo - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Breakdown (1)
	3. Sidewalk Zone Map
	Cost Breakdown - FINAL

	Item 31.	MRA - McWing LLC
	1. Memo - MRA McWing LLC (3015-3025-3035-3045 Capital Way)
	2. MRA

	Item 32.	Low Bid- Ashworth Drive Extension
	1. Memo Low Bid - Ashworth Drive Extension
	Bid Tab

	Item 33.	North Cedar Heights Area - ROW Acquisition
	1.Memo - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruciton Phase 1 ROW Acquisition
	ROW exhibit
	Purchase Agreement
	Sanitary Sewer Agreement
	Temporary Construction Easement

	Item 34.	PSA - Greenwood Cemetary Slope Stabilization
	1. Memo PSA - AECOM Design Services
	2.PSA - CF Greenwood Cemetery Slope Stabilization

	Item 35.	Temp Easements-2023 Alley Reconstruction
	1. ROW Acquisition Memo - Brett
	13th-14th and Franklin to Clay Alley Easement Map
	Alley Easements

	Item 36.	Set PH-2023 Alley Reconstruction-PSE
	1. Memo PSE - 2023 Alley Reconstruction
	4. Cost Estimate

	Item 37.	Set PH-2023 Seal Coat
	1. Memo PSE - 2023 Seal Coat
	EST - 2023 Sealcoat

	Item 38.	Set PH - FY2023 Budget Amendments
	Budget Amend #1 Set Pub Hear Memo
	FY2023 PublicHearingNotice Budget Amendment

	Item 39.	Set PH - Vacate ROW Hudson Road
	1 CC memo setting public hearing for Hudson Road ROW vacation
	2. Lot Exhibit 12-27-22
	PH Ntc-Vacate ROW
	4. Res Setting PH and Directing Publication of Notice.final

	Item 40.	Bills and Claims 05-01-23
	1 Daily Invoices 050123
	2 Council Invoices 050123

	Item 41.	Referral-TIF release
	0165_001

	Bottom

